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I\Ii!SbSION STATEMENT
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Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain EHEEERATRNIEHRELESR - BKE
the high quality of its products, manufacturing processes and A EBRE  UREFETUEARNEM K
service to customers and to forge a worldwide reputation as a ERRERE  BFEBHBLEE ZTEI -
business demanding excellence in all of its operations.
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The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and
trades quality power cord, power cord sets, cables and solid
wire, wire harnesses and plastic resins. The Group's primary
markets are America, Europe, Australia, Mainland China, Japan
and Southeast Asia where it sells to prominent multi-national
producers of electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, as at 31st December 2018, the
Group employs 930 staff worldwide involved in management,
sales and marketing, shipping, procurement, financial and
accounting, engineering, production and manufacturing. The
Group considers its employees to be its most important asset
while its key values are quality, prudence and integrity.
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Perennial
International Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to announce
the audited consolidated financial results of the Company,
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December 2018.

The Group’'s revenue was HK$355,744,000 (2017:
HK$364,401,000). Loss for the year was HK$1,760,000 compared
to the profit for the year HK$19,283,000 in 2017. Loss per share
was HK$0.009 (2017 Earnings per share: HK$0.097).

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the final dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2018. The group did not pay any final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2017.

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday,
7th May 2019 (“2019 AGM").

The register of members of the Company will be closed during
the periods from Thursday, 2nd May 2019 to Tuesday, 7th
May 2019, both days inclusive and during which period no
share transfer will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company's
branch share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 30th April 2019.

Business Review

The Group’'s revenue decreased by 2.4% to HK$356 million
in this financial year. The decrease in revenue was mainly
due to reduction of sales orders as a result of intense price
competitions in the market. Revenue in terms of sales mix was
relatively stable when compared with that of last year. Sales in
power cords and plastic resins accounted for 61% of the Group's
revenue, and cables, wires and wire harness accounted for 39%
of the Group's revenue.

The gross margin decreased from 22.6% in 2017 to 15.8% in
2018. The decrease in gross margin was due to several reasons
including the drop of revenue as a result of price competitions,
the increase in purchase price of major raw materials, the
appreciation in the exchange rate of Renminbi against Hong
Kong dollars on full year basis and the additional tariff imposed
by United States on Chinese products as a result of United
States and China trade disputes.
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The Group recorded a negative net profit margin of 0.5% in
2018 compared to positive net profit margin 5.3% in 2017. The
net loss was mainly due to decrease in gross margin.

As the trade disputes between United States and China still
continue, the Group has maintained conservative approach on
the development of the disputes. The additional 10% tariff by
United States on Chinese products has created certain impact
on our products. But notwithstanding this, the Group has taken
an active approach to reduce our operation costs.

As to the factory construction in Quang Ngai, Vietnam, the
phase | construction works consisting of the construction of a
factory building and one canteen, was substantially completed
by the end of the year. The Group has entered into a construction
contract with the same contractor as phase | construction for
the phase Il construction works consisting of the construction
of two factory buildings on phase Il development of the land.
The phase Il construction project was expected to be completed
in March 2019. For details of the transaction, please refer to
Company's announcements dated 12th January 2018 and 4th
September 2018.

Regarding the Group’'s ESG performance, please refer to the
Group’s ESG report on page 11 to 33.

Future Prospect

Although the business environment is still uncertain, the
Group is very positive to the future prospect of the business
operations. Regarding the factory construction in Quang Ngai,
Vietnam, the Group is taking consideration and assessment on
the business needs to launch the phase IlIl construction. It is
probable that the phase Il construction work will be engaged
in cable manufacturing. The Group will exercise caution in
its investment in overseas manufacturing facilities. With the
commencement of operations in Quang Ngai, Vietnam, the
Group is more flexible in leveraging the productions in Vietnam,
Shenzhen City and Heyuan City to attain maximum efficiency
in the deployment of resources of the Group to achieve high
standard of cost rationalization. This is in line of the objective
of the Group to maintain long term sustainability and growth
of the business. The feedback from customers regarding our
manufacturing facilities in Vietnam has been very encouraging
including the price sensitive customers.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EFERE (B)

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights and
enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result, the Group
has established the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere
to the best practice.

Social Responsibility

The Group’s factories are regularly subject to factory audit
by multinational enterprises. The factory audit served as a
catalyst to enhance the Group's standard on corporate social
responsibility.

Moreover, the Group holds a strong belief in corporate social
responsibility. So the Group continues to participate in and
support community activities in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thanks to our loyal
shareholders, partners and customers for their continuous
support and to our staff for their dedication.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EEENmE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st December 2018, the consolidated short-term
indebtedness of the Group was approximately HK$61,534,000.
The borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The bank
balances and cash amounted to approximately HK$49,996,000.

As at 31st December 2018, the Group’s trade and bill
receivables balance was approximately HK$90,330,000,
representing 25.4% of the year's revenue of approximately
HK$355,744,000. The Group adopted a stringent credit policy
to minimize credit risk.

As at 31st December 2018, the Group's gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing total borrowings to total equity was 10.6%
(2017: 6.7%).

The interest cover in 2018 was 1.6 times as compared to 26.5
times in 2017.

Capital Structure

As at 31st December 2018, the consolidated shareholders’
equity of the Group was approximately HK$578,085,000,
representing an increase of 2.8% over that of the previous year.
The debt to equity ratio, which is calculated by dividing total
liabilities to shareholders’ equity, was approximately 26.8%.

Capital Expenditure and Material
Acquisitions
During the year under review, capital expenditure approximate
to HK$46,155,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31st December 2018, the Group's trade and loan finance
facilities amounted to approximately HK$206,000,000, and of
which HK$186,000,000 were secured by legal charges over
certain land and buildings and investment properties of the
Group with a total carrying value of HK$170,570,000.

Segment Information

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and Mainland
China continued to be the Group’s major markets, accounting
for approximately 32%, 51% and 14% of the Group's total sales
respectively. The remaining 3% of sales were generated from
customers located in Europe and other countries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN BRI E)

Employees’ Remuneration Policy

As at 31st December 2018, the Group employed 930 full time
management, administrative and production staff worldwide.
The Group follows market practice on remuneration packages.
Employee’s remuneration is reviewed and determined by
senior management annually depending on the employee's
performance, experience and industry practice. The Group
invests in its human capital. In addition to on-job training,
the Group adopts policies of continuous professional training
programs.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Group are
appropriately managed and hedged, if necessary.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31st December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -AEgRERME(E)

About this Report

This report is the third annual environmental, social and
governance (ESG) report prepared by Perennial International
Limited (“Perennial”, “the Company”, *“the Group” and “we” or
us”) with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide published by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The report covers all business
departments in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, and Heyuan. Unless
specified otherwise, the period involving the figures and content
of the report would be 1st January 2018 to 31st December,
2018.

The figures and contents of this report mainly come from the
statistical reports and internal communication documents of the
Company. The Board of the Company undertakes that there are
no misrepresentations or misleading statements contained in
this report, and assumes responsibilities for the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of its content. Upon confirmation
by the management, the report was approved by the Board on
25th March 2019.

For any enquiry on the
info@perennialcable.com.

report, please email to

Perennial’s Environmental, Social and

Governance Practice

The Group engages in the manufacturing and trading of high-
quality power cords and related products for medical, solar
energy, automotive and home appliances as well as the selling of
such products to renowned producers of electrical and electronic
products in different continents. While committed to the pursuit
of profit, the Group also strives to reduce any negative impacts
on the environment, its workforce and business partners, and
the community. Through the establishment of management
systems and implementation of various measures in terms
of environmental protection, protection of workers’ rights and
interests, product quality and social welfare, we aim to create
values for all.

The Group holds fast the conviction of corporate accountability
and integrates environmental, social and governance elements
in all aspects of the Group from top to bottom. The Board
of Directors assumes the responsibility of assessing our
performance and the existence of any risks in terms of the
environment, society and governance to ensure that important
issues are dealt with according to their priorities, and to approve
any relevant information for disclosure by the Group. Every
department of the Company participates in the coordination
and implementation of appropriate policies and measures in its
daily operation to realise the Group’s policies and strategies on
environmental, social and governance issues. Our factories are
regularly inspected by international corporations. Due to such
inspections, we are able to raise our corporate standards on
social responsibility.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Stakeholder Communication

The Group’'s business operation may affect its shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers, and the government, and
in turn, they may have their expectations and opinions on
Perennial’s operation and strategies. To maintain effective
communication with our stakeholders and for the incorporation
of their demands in a balanced manner for the enhancement
of our operation, we have prepared a set of management
procedures regarding stakeholder communication according
to their characteristics, and used appropriate communication
channels so that information can be delivered effectively and in
a timely fashion. The Group’s means of communication with its
stakeholders are specified as follows:

Stakeholder Group Means of Communication

Shareholders — Regular announcements

— Annual general meetings

Government — Appointments
Employees — Formulating a work appraisal system
— Setting up suggestion boxes
— Direct email communication with the
management staff
Customers — Customer satisfaction survey
— Regular communication (by means
of telephone, site visit and business
dinner)
— After-sales service
Suppliers — Continuous follow-up and evaluation

of suppliers
— Regular communication (by means of
telephone, site visit, business dinner)

Charity Partners — Active contact
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -AEgRERME(E)

Material Issues on Environmental, Social and
Governance

In 2016, an independent consultant was engaged to engage
our stakeholders, such as our staff, customers and suppliers, in
accordance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to facilitate a materiality
assessment to identify environmental, social and governance
issues that are relevant and important to Perennial and set
strategic directions. There was no significant change' in the
business and market environment in the year compared to 2016.
Upon careful consideration, the Board decided to follow the
material issue list of last year. The significant issues and their
relevance to the Group are summarized as follows:

Environmental

EENRE HEREREE
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Employment

RIR &
Issue Relevance to the Group Issue Relevance to the Group
R B 15 & 5K B Z A B E4- B 15 & 5K B 2 A BA
Energy The Group consumes energy in Occupational The production personnel face
conservation machine operation and lighting, health and safety certain health and safety risks

during the production process.
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when they are working on the
production lines. The Company is
responsible for the work safety of
its staff members.

SEELERRTEEAERIA BERER2 TEANEGEEERLETERES

HETHELRZZRAR - 2748
EFERBEIIELS

Waste disposal During the production process, the Labor and human The operation of the Company
Group produces various wastes, rights regulations  must comply with local laws

some of which are hazardous and
require proper handling.

and regulations. We particularly
stress the provision of statutory
protection and rights for our staff.

g =/)gt SEEHXEREPEELESEE SHRARER QRANEEVNARSEMMNEE
B o BorBEEEREY  FTEX ERCOBMLHEER RETIRME
ERIE - ETERERER o

Water resources The Group utilizes municipal Staff training Our staff training helps enhance

management water in some of its product quality and production
production phases. efficiency.

KEIRE B SEEH EERSPFEEAT BEIEI REIRMHEZIEHRAERE
K e EREEWE -

T As at 31st December 2018, our new plant in Vietnam has not

commenced operation.

" RZFE-NEFZA=F—H  HEFEEE R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE HgkERHRE(B)

Employment

RB E &
Issue Relevance to the Group Issue Relevance to the Group
HE BHiEREEZHBEY HE BRiEREEZHEHBEY
Material recycling Since the Group produces various Employment Various business development
wastes during the production relationship plans of the Company are closely

YRR E

Packaging
materials

BERMF

Environmental
regulations and
impact

RIBZARLEE

process, the reuse of wasted
materials can reduce land
pollution.

SEELEBRETEELRHEE
£ EREREAAR DS T

HH e

As the Group must use packaging
materials to deliver products, such
materials may become wastes
after delivery.
SETEXERRVACRBE
M hEBRBEMHEHRERE
ATRE AN R EEHL -

The operation of the Company
must comply with local laws and
regulations. We particularly stress
the possible environmental impact
of our production bases.
NENEEV AT EMRER
ER RFILHEREELMA]
RRUHRREBANTE -

linked to recruiting and retaining
staff. Building good employment
relationships and positive
employer image is conducive to
hiring and retaining talents.

12 & B8 % AR BEEBH RS A HEITH
ATHHRERGEBEEER - 2
URIFNERER BIRIIE
FHER  GHHBEBMGEEAT -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -AEgRERME(E)

Operation Community
giE HE

Issue Relevance to the Group Issue Relevance to the Group

HE BHiEREE2HBEY HE HiEREEZHBEY

Product quality Customers expect to purchase Community Committed to serving as a
quality and safe products. investment company of integrity, the Group
Product quality and safety are the sustains its participation in and
foundations for keeping the faith support of community activities in
of our customers. Hong Kong and China.

EmBE BEEHEREEERLENER ° (MEERA AEERFHREOEENES
EmBERT2UMREFERSRE FIABRMBEBELENMIFE AR
HZER - FEA TR -

Customer Maintaining good customer

relationship relations brings stable income
streams and corporate
development for Perennial Group.

EPBAE HENEFPNERATSERNEEA

Anti-corruption

5]
pul
B

Supply chain
management

HEsEE

ERENBARBEMERER -

The operation of the Company
must comply with local laws
and regulations. Business ethics
stands as the foundation for the
Company's reputation.
ARAMEEL AT AEMIER
EH O BEBRERRQRAEEZ
HA -

As its suppliers may affect

the environment during their
operation, Perennial is responsible
for supporting the suppliers

with better environmental
performance.
HEMNEERIGHREBENX
e BHREEEIRFRERR
BREMHEER -

The Vietnam plant starts operating next year. Our company
will conduct a new round of stakeholder communication and

materiality analysis for the Vietnam business.

A e

TEEREBREFMESGRALE - BAKE S
BEEBETH —BEIABBREAES
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Environment

Environmental Management Procedures

We strive to perfect our environmental management system.
Grounded on our compliances with environmental Iegislations
such as the Environmental Protection Law ((IRIBREL))
of Mainland China, we strive to meet the expectation of our
stakeholders by practicing the idea of environmental protection
in every part of our operation. In order to provide clear
guidance to all departments on the use of energy resources,
waste disposal and environmental pollution prevention, and
to enable the effective implementation of such monitoring
and control, the Perennial Group has formulated a set of
“Environmental Procedures”, which clearly stipulates the duties
of all personnel of the Group. We review and evaluate regularly
the environmental management programs and procedures as
well as the implementation of various environmental goals and
metrics, and make timely corrections and implement preventive
measures in areas of concern.

In addition, according to the “Provisions of Carbon Emissions
Management of the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone” (%
B EFERENERSE THE)) and “Interim Measures of
Shenzhen Municipality for the Administration of Carbon Emission
Permits Trading” (ORI IRBENERZ ZE B ETIED), our
production base in Shenzhen has joined the Shenzhen carbon
emission trading market, hence the plant's carbon emission data
are subject to audit.

Energy Conservation

The Group relies on externally purchased electricity as the main
source of energy to power its production machinery and provide
energy for its dormitories. The Group also consumes diesel and
gasoline to power forklift trucks and motor vehicles. The Group
strives to increase energy efficiency in general and reduce our
dependence on direct and indirect energy. For such purposes,
we conserve energy in respect of lighting, heating and indoor
temperature adjustment, as follows:

= All the plants of the Group are built in the principle of
north-south orientation to enhance indoor ventilation and
reduce the demand for indoor air-conditioning.

- Energy-saving light tubes are adopted for the luminaires
inside the plants, while outdoor road lights are equipped
with 1T00W LED light bulbs. In addition, our Heyuan plant
also harnesses solar energy to power enclosure lamps,
saving approximately 8,340 kWh per year.

= The residual heat of the air compressors is used for
supplying hot water in dormitories.

R HehEr®ms(E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE dHegkERBHRE(E)

The following tables set out the Company’s energy consumption
and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions performance in 2017 and
2018:

TREIRAE_Z—LtFR_FT-N\FARAZ
BRRRNERENMREREERRR:

E . Consumption RE
nergy Consumption
Indicators Units 2018 2017 RREREE B ZE-\§ ZB-t%
Total energy consumption MWh 8,262 8,512 BeeRERE KRR 8,262 8,512
-Direct energy MWh 653 681 -~EEER KR & 653 681
consumptions HEE
~Indirect energy MWh 7,609 7,831 -f&ER kBB 7,609 7,831
consumption HIEE
Energy consumed per kWh/tonne 715 627 BHESEE TRE/ 715 627
tonne of output? BE N
GHG Emission Emission EBE
Indicators Units 2018 2017 BERBHEMEE BN ZE-N\E ZE—<tF
GHG emission tCO,e? 5,277 5,460 BERBAH W&t 5,277 5,460
mE xg&s
GHG emission per  kgCO.e/ 456 402 FWE 2 N4 456 402
tonne of output? tonne TrHE k2 wEE,/
N
2 This includes plastic pellets, wires, socket wires and 2 CIEBBN B HEREFRREGE
extension cords. AR e
3 The total greenhouse gas emission is the sum of greenhouse  ° AFEZ B EREBRBIHNEBEE 1R EE2
gases emitted from Scopes 1 and 2, and is presented in BERBHKES LN K-Sk EE
carbon dioxide equivalent (COe). KT o

Scope 1 Greenhouse gas emission refers to the direct emissions
from fuel combustion of fixed and mobile sources, which includes the
Group’s diesel and gasoline consumption in this report. The estimation
method and emission coefficients are adopted from the Specification
and Guidance for Quantification and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas
Emissions of Companies ({128 ZEREH N BN MBEEHERIEH))
issued by the Market Supervision Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality (%
Wi B EEERE ).

Scope 2 Greenhouse gas emission refers to energy indirect emissions
which include the electricity purchased by the Group from electricity
companies. The estimation method is adopted from the Guidelines to
Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals
for Buildings in Hong Kong (2010 Edition) and the Specification and
Guidance for Quantification and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions
of Companies issued by the Market Supervision Bureau of Shenzhen
Municipality, whereas the emission coefficients for purchased electricity
is adopted from the information announced by CLP in 2017 and
“Calculation Spreadsheet of China Regional Grid Emission Factors for
Purchased Electricity” by World Resources Institute in 2013.

AR RIS BLE R REZ M Er B
RO R E A B 15 5 B ) 560 R )T E 4
EOZRFEAZF B BRY 15 5 BB #
ha) (LR R EREHMEENBERBLRIED)

BEEZREHNNEREREAEHL  REH & H
BEFEEFRENLABENET - BELZRZ(E
VBRSBTS RE BB R B B 2 5 R 2 15 5] )
(ZFE—FFR)FY T i 5 8 B E B AT &M (
FRERBHKENFRERERIER) MRE
ERAMBEEZ ) HEKEBA DB FHE—F
—tFRERERFFHR = F —=F (P2 5 A
RNBEDHMAHFERIALHAIEH -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Waste Disposal

Solid wastes produced by the Company from production
site, warehouses and offices are stored and disposed of by
categories of “recyclable”, “non-recyclable” and "“hazardous
waste"”. All of the above categories of wastes are disposed of
by a professionally recognized waste disposal agency. The table
below shows the amount of waste generated and processed by
the Company in 2017 and 2018:

Amount Collected and

R HehEr®ms(E)

R R Y m
REEEERS BB WAEHEENEE
BEEY - RIAE N R AT B R [fa b e ]
DEFRRES - A LEENEENGIHE
ERANBEENERHBEE - TRHIDA
E-_T—tFR-B-\FAEEREENE
ENBE:

Processed FUEREEEE
Types of Wastes* Units 2018 2017 BENEE By “BE-\F ZE-tF
Waste paper tonne 31.0 47 R N 31.0 17
Reusable plastic tonne 150.2 175.8 AMAZRE NI 150.2 175.8
Scrap copper tonne 24.7 26.6 3] N 24.7 26.6
Waste wire tonne 124.1 161.4 EER N 124.1 161.4
Hazardous waste tonne 1.9 12.3 1 2 & i N 1.9 12.3
Reducing Resource Wastage BMPERRE

The Group mainly utilizes raw materials (copper wire, rubber and
plastic), packaging materials and water for production. Under the
premise of not compromising our products’ strict international
quality standards, we strive to improve the efficiency of resource
use. For example, we will break up old rubber wire casings for
recycling and reuse them in certain products that have lower
performance requirements (such as plug pins covers) or arrange
for third-party recycling to reduce waste. As for the production
water in the workshop, we collect and reuse it through the
circulating pool, which can save more than 10,000 cubic meters
of water throughout the year. The table below sets forth the
Company's use of various resources in 2017 and 2018:

EBHETEFERAEMAGRE  BBREER) 8
HYBMKETEE - BRPETFEERTA
BEERREZENIRT  SHRAERE
ARz PR MERENERBNITHE
EoOUWR—EMEERTeNERP (IEE
FANENE)BXER 2L HE=-FH#E
TEW ARDRE - ERERBEEBK
BRMEBBERAKBWESEHFNE - 2FA 6
KIBML KU E c TREINRREZZT—+F
FZE-NFREBERNERE:

Resources Usage Consumption RE
Indicators Units 2018 2017 EREARE B “E-N\F ZZ-tF
Water consumption m? 77,882 85,650 EKE AR 77,882 85,650
Water consumption m?/tonne 6.7 6.3 G EE? Ak 6.7 6.3
density per EKEE N
tonne of output?
Packaging material tonne 249.3 307.4 BEY R N 249.3 307.4
- consumption of e
cardboard boxes FHE
Packaging material tonne 50.2 315 BEME N 50.2 315
- plastic® consumption -ERMEAE

4 Waste lead bars and tin residues are also recyclables. Nevertheless,
due to their small amount, we do not make such disclosure in this
report.

5 We only count the use of plastic bags in 2017, and the scope of
calculation has been extended to the use of other plastic packaging.

¢ BHEREEBNATENEEY - 682K
4 FRBE -

S —E—+FREHBREFE: —F—NFHa
BEBAZARAMLEBEERYHEHE -

19



20

Perennial International Limited 1B %8 £ @ A R A 7

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -AEgRERME(E)

Pollution Prevention

In order to comply with the provisions of environmental
regulations and reduce our direct impact on the environment
during our operation, the Group has implemented a set of
“Environmental Pollution Prevention and Control Procedures” to
control wastewater, exhaust gases, noise and waste generated
during our operations.

Our production process discharges no wastewater. Domestic
wastewater mainly comes from canteens and dormitories. Years
ago, the Group engaged qualified engineering companies to
carry out wastewater treatment projects in accordance with the
first-class standard of Guangdong Province's “Discharge Limits
of Water Pollutants” (/)5 BEMRE) ) to meet discharge
standards. Sewage from toilet will be treated first by the septic
tank, then discharged to the municipal sewage network. We
supervise every step of the contractor’s regular cleaning of
the septic tank to prevent secondary pollution caused by the
sewage.

Our operations do not involve the discharge of a large amount
of air pollutants. The exhaust gases generated include canteen
soot, plastic workshop dust and a small amount of harmful
gases. After adsorption treatment, the level of exhaust meets
the emission standards required by national regulations. In
addition, we regularly inspect plastic, rubber and other materials
which contain organic elements to prevent the release of gases
that are harmful to the ozone layer during the production process
or after decomposition. We make improvements to substandard
materials to meet the requirements of the relevant regulations.

Some machines in the Company’s factory generate noise. We
regularly check the noise level of major sites according to the
requirements of the PRC’s “Emission Standard for Industrial
Enterprises Noise at Boundary”. No noise levels have been
found to exceed the regulations’ requirement and have any
negative impact on the communities in the vicinity of the plant.
For workplaces where the noise level exceeds such standards,
the Company stipulates that field workers must wear earplugs
to reduce the impact of noise on the human body.

Staff

We value our employees’ contributions to the Company's
growth and success, and believe they are the Company’s most
important asset. In order to provide a good and harmonious
working environment, the Group implements people-oriented
human resource management and adopts human resource
management policy that respects humanity, values human
dignity and pay attention to communication. As at 31 December
2018, the Group employed 930 employees primarily responsible
for management, sales and marketing, shipping, procurement,
finance and accounting, engineering and production.

TR A

SBRLOBRMELZERSHRENERTZE B
MEBHET TCREFRPAESRF) - AiE
HEEBRRPELENEK BER BRIREE
Y ERARMRERATARRERORE -

BPMEEBRRLEEEREK £EFFK
TERARENES - EEZFHCEZEAE
RETRERABAERRBRERECKTRYERRED
—RBERMEEISKRFAETRE Lk
PERIRZE - RIPTIS KR EIMEIE - B
ETREM: AMeEBEABTETHBEL
RN E —ELR AL KEKR ZIRF

BPMEERB ISR AEZR TR
B MEANBERERRERE ZBHEH
WERVEEERE  KMMERE  BERE
ZFBZORMEBRKMBEBITE - 35 RFIE
HERRENZRE BBEEREAARTENY
Bt LB EERRP R BEELIENX
REAEBRZEHNRE - IMBETAB  HMSE
THE UNAmEEBIRAIER -

REBEARAE THBRGEHES - RARESD
EARAMBKIRZCERAREZE)NR
EEFR - EHRBERSHREKF - R
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HEBEBREE HRIKFEBEBEENTIES
i RRIRERSTEABLAMEEE @ &
BEREHABHNRE -
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F+-—A=+—H8 EHEBEEMIOZLEL"
FTEEEEE HERTBHEHEE MK K
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Occupational Safety and Health

The safety and health of employees are crucial to a productive
workplace. Therefore, we have formulated policies, objectives,
management systems and operating procedures regarding
safety. We are committed to providing a safe working
environment for employees, in addition to our compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations such as the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Work Safety” ({1 ZEA R L HME
L& HEER)) and the "Regulations of Guangdong Province on
Production Safety” ((ER&E X EEEKDHI)). The Company's
“Management Regulation on Production Safety” stipulates the
responsibilities of our safety production committee, all levels of
our departments and safety production management personnel.
In order to maintain a sound safety production accountability
system, we regularly conduct safety production accountability
assessments on our workshops and provide comprehensive
safety training for our employees during quarterly safety
production meetings.

We implement the “Management Procedures for Dangerous
Chemicals and Qil Products” to prevent adverse effects
on people and the environment during the procurement,
transportation, storage, use, and disposal of hazardous
chemicals and oil products. In addition, the person responsible
for the organization of dangerous chemicals must receive
training to obtain general knowledge of storage management
of dangerous goods, and must be accompanied by safety
management personnel when conducting such organization.

Our "Emergency Preparedness and Response Control
Procedures” provide contingency plans and treatments covering
accidents such as fires, typhoons, rainstorm and spills of
hazardous material, so that we can respond to incident in a
timely manner and minimize the impact. We provide emergency
training and drills annually to enhance employees’ safety
awareness and incident handling capabilities, and communicate
important safety issues to employees through bulletin boards.

During the reporting year, we did not record any work-related
death, and the number of working days lost due to work-related
injuries was 422 days (2017: 188.5 days). We will continue to
monitor and review the level of work-related injuries, carry out
regular inspections and rectification of potential safety threats
to ensure the safety of our employees in the workplace.

R HehEr®ms(E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -AEgRERME(E)

Employment Policy

To facilitate a more effective and systematic management
of our human resources, the Company has formulated an
employment policy that adheres to the Labour Law ({4 &)
7A)) and the Labour Contract Law (&8 & %)) of the PRC
as well as other relevant regulations and takes into account
practical circumstances, to serve as a framework for setting
staff remuneration and benefits. The wages of production line
personnel are calculated on piece-rate basis who can earn more
from extra work. We pay social insurance premiums for our staff
members and offer benefits such as annual leave, meal, lunch
subsidies, accommodation and workwear. Those who work
overtime on working days, weekends and statutory holidays
can earn 1.5 to 3 times of the basic hourly wage rate. The
Company's standard wage for employees is not lower than the
level set by the national “Provisions on Minimum Wages” ({&
K ZT&#HF)) and local minimum wage standards, and wages
are adjusted irregularly according to the corporate economic and
personal performance.

As a company that adheres to the principle of equal opportunity,
we hire people base on merits and on no occasion accept or
tolerate any differential treatment based on gender, age and
race. In order to avoid the employment of forced labor and child
labor®, we ascertain the identity and age of applicant during the
recruitment process.

1& & B R
BEAEUNEGHEREANER
FEBERCEHE) (&
N EBIEROEBERR
I%Mﬁ@ﬂﬁ%%ﬂ
ST LSBT E -
S8 HPAME TIREFR  HEmEL - (K
R -FE@MY FHE IXSEEHN WMETIR
TR -KREBRETEBAMME  JEBSER
B 1553 ITE - RAIMEEBEZETIERNRK
REF(REIEREIAEMREIEZE
i T & IR TE HA AR 4 (b 2 48 B A A A R IR
THE -

NAIHIET T
@JNTa@%JEF’%&WU
WA ZBEEY B
cHAEM/KBEBTITE
BT EmMTER
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ERBTFERERAOATF - HPBAMES
%@T\%Ei* EEH%EAIEEIJ F i ME R
ZHAFE RREMBESTRETS - M
E%HﬁﬂkﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁE’J%Tﬁ)&ih@ ©

Number of Staff 2018 2017 ETHE ZE-N\F ZB—tHF
By gender &M B &2

Male 379 445 S 379 445
Female 551 587 8 551 587
By ranking ZB&E D

Senior 9 8 = 9 8
Intermediate 156 62 AR 156 62
Junior 765 962 1% 765 962
By age BEFERE D

<30 180 239 <30 180 239
30-50 700 749 30-50 700 749
>50 50 44 >50 50 44

6 This refers to any individual less than 16 years of age.

o RUFJRFI6EFZA L -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Development and Training Opportunities

The Company assesses our staff's work performance regularly
through an appraisal system, so that our staff may receive
worthy rewards and be able to improve their quality of work
continuously.

We offer internal and external training opportunities for our
staff. To facilitate new employees to understand the Company's
background, rules and regulations, job positions, product
identification, quality policy, restriction of hazardous substances
(RoHS) and occupational safety, etc., all are required to receive
induction training. Each department provides training for
employees based on the Company's annual training program and
its annual training needs, so that employees can further develop
their talents, meet department requirements and overcome their
challenges. The Company also arranges training courses on ISO
basics, onsite management, fire safety and first aid, to cater to
each department’s functional and technical needs.

Average Number of Training

R HehEr®ms(E)

BRRIZIEE
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Hours for Employees’ 2018 2017 EEFHZIEE —E-N\F ZE—+tF
By gender ZH R85

Male 32.0 29.2 Bt 32.0 29.2
Female 34.2 30.4 gl 34.2 30.4
By ranking ZRRE S

Senior 14.0 85.0 =S¥ 14.0 85.0
Intermediate 41.9 34.4 R 41.9 34.4
Junior 33.2 29.7 IE 33.2 29.7
Communication with and Caring of Employees ETEBRKBE

Through existing communication channels and mechanisms
(such as suggestion box), employees are free to express their
opinions on various business aspects and daily works. If an
employee’s proposal or suggestion is considered constructive by
the Company or adopted by relevant department, the employee
will be commended and rewarded.

We regularly organize events to promote unity among our
employees, boost morale and a sense of belonging towards
the Company. For example, we hold annual banquets at various
operating locations on the eve of the Spring Festival to express
gratitude to our employees for their efforts during the year. On
such occasions, we also present Outstanding Staff Recognition
Awards to honor employees who have made outstanding
contributions. In addition, we dole out red packets to our
employees and serve extra meals at the annual commencement
ceremony.

7 The figures represent the total number of training hours by
employment category divided by the number of staff members who
received training and were still employed by Perennial Group as at
31st December of the reporting year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - -AEgRERME(E)

Operation

Being a manufacturer, we are closely connected to our
customers and suppliers. Through listening to their opinions,
improving product quality, and operating our business
responsibly, we actively cultivate and maintain with them long-
term relationships that are abide by business ethics.

Product Quality

Our requirement on material quality and quality control
procedure are the reasons why our various products are
recognized by different countries. The Group uses wires that
contain at least 99.96% of copper, which allow our products
to have high energy efficiency. And in order to deliver top-
quality and safe products to our customers, other raw materials
are also required to meet product safety and environmental
requirements (e.g. RoHS). By implementing the “Control
Procedures for Remedial Actions and Precautions” ({4l 1EF7&
B fE i 2 #1327 ) ), we prevent and fix products that do not
meet the standards. The Company conducts comprehensive
quality inspections of all products, and only the products that
pass the inspection can enter the next process.

In addition to product quality, we also run safety test on our
products. Wire and power cord products must pass high-voltage
safety test at 100% on the production line. The Company’s test
center also conducts reliability tests on materials and finished
samples such as rubber aging and tensile testing every three
months. Our “Safety and Reliability Policy” ({ % % 7] 5 &
%)) guarantees that our product meets the requirements of the
safety certification body and requires the Company to provide
guidelines for safe use so that users can use the Company's
products at ease. During the reporting year there were no
reports on sold or delivered products that had to be recalled for
safety and health reasons.

The Group stipulates that, for products that do not meet our
standards, preliminary remedial measures shall be implemented
within 24 hours upon the identification of such problems. Should
the issue involve multiple departments, the principal responsible
department shall convene a cross-departmental quality meeting
with relevant departments to discuss and work out solutions
before addressing the matter. If the products are still not
up to standard after such handling, we will dispose of such
problematic products and consider revising the ancillary quality
system.
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Customer Relationship

The responsible staff of the Quality Control Department would
analyse and follow up all customer complaints. We require
the department to contact the customer concerned within 24
hours after receiving the complaint, identify the causes within
3 working days, and formulate remedial actions and submit the
solutions and results to relevant staff within 7 working days,
before confirming the solution with the customer. In addition
to solving the existing problems raised by the customer, we
also conduct follow-up checks on 3 batches of similar types of
products after improvement, in order to prevent recurrence of
the same problem. We distribute satisfaction survey forms to
our customers in the fourth quarter each year, to collect their
views on the Company’s products in respect of quality, service,
delivery time, etc. Notwithstanding small number of complaints
regarding product appearance (12 cases in total : 2017: 9), all
of them were properly handled according to the customer
complaint handling procedures.

Confidential Information of Customers and
Intellectual Property

The Group often gains access to trade secrets and non-
public technical information in the course of business. We
have established a stringent system of confidentiality within
the Company to protect customer information. Our staff must
comply with the relevant requirements of the Company and
perform the corresponding duty of confidentiality. We would
impose punishment on any breach of the confidentiality system
in accordance with the Labor Contract Law and relevant laws.

To protect our intellectual properties, we are entitled to applying
for patents for all the inventions, creations, technical innovations,
products or formulas during our service. On the other hand,
we do not infringe other companies’ intellectual properties. If
any infringement is discovered, the staff concerned would be
subjected to severe punishment.

Ethics

Through reward and punishment measures, we convey to our
employees the message of adherence to business ethics and
establishing clean corporate culture. All employees must sign
and agree to abide by the Code of Ethics when they enter the
Company. To further prevent conflicts of interest, we require
employees responsible for sales and procurement to disclose
whether they have any relationship with any existing supplier
or customer. The Company has also engaged internal control
consultants to assist in the assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control measures and other management measures so
as to maintain the Company’s ethical obligations. The Company's
operations comply with local regulations on bribery prevention.
During the reporting year, we did not have any corruption cases.
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RIE - -AEgRERME(E)

Supply Chain Management

Through setting up the “Procurement Procedures” ({# &
2 )), the Group regulates the procurement process and
ensures that all selected suppliers can meet our demands
on materials and production. When selecting suppliers, we
make assessments in terms of their background, product price
and environmental management system. We conduct simple
monthly assessment for our existing suppliers. Our general
manager can decide whether to disqualify the suppliers with
poor performance and of no signs of improvement. As required
by the Chinese customs, our suppliers need to undergo trade
safety investigation.

In addition to their compliance and quality of materials and
services, the supplier's environmental performance is also
significant part of our concerns. In order to extend the
responsibility of protecting the environment to our supply
chain, the Company has implemented the “Environmental
Management Procedures for Stakeholders” ({F|z5+878 5 &
EEIERF)) and the ISO 14001 environmental management
system, to express its intention and conduct inspections or
assessments of our suppliers’ environmental conditions. We
have the following environmental requirements for suppliers:

- Provision of environmentally-friendly products which cause
no adverse impact to the environment

= Proper handling of all types of gases,
wastes produced during production

liquid and solid

- Application of clean production technology

- Minimal application of dangerous raw materials during
production

= Minimal use of packaging materials

- Minimal exhaust emission and noise pollution by motor
vehicles or during production

= Compliance with relevant requirements of the Company
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Should the supplier fail to comply with our requirements
regarding environmental protection, relevant departments will
demand for correction, and if necessary, leaders from both
parties will hold meetings to work out a solution. The supplier
will be disqualified if the cases are considered to be serious. We
also conduct onsite environmental assessment on the supplier,
request for and follow up the improvement. The environmental
investigation result of our suppliers can serve as the assessment
basis for qualified suppliers.

R HehEr®ms(E)

EHEBAREmERMMNREER  BREEDM
ERHMIEFE VERHEHTTEARAEA
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Number of Suppliers 2018 2017 HERHE —E-N\FE ZEBE—+tHF
By region RitEE 5
Hong Kong 68 35 > 68 35
Mainland China 180 120 WD A 180 120
Overseas 15 1 HNER 15 1
Charitable Activities YN T
We pay attention to communities in need in the society #HPME It @ rEFTENIHE  BRBHE
and support charities and community development through E @ THAZEHNLEEERE - %‘%lﬁlﬁﬁ

donations. During the year, the group donated money to the
Guizhou Cultural Heritage and Rural Development Foundation
(BEMb#F AR 3R E S €) to support the promotion of
educatlon and training, cultural development, medical and public
health and other livelihood projects in western China. In the area
of youth development, the Group donated to the Correctional
Services Children’s Education Trust and the Centum Charitas
Foundation, in the hope that those recipients will have more
learning opportunities. We also seek to promote community
health and gender equality by donating to Po Leung Kuk, Police
Welfare Fund, Concerted Efforts Resource Centre and the Hong
Kong Federation of Women.

During the reporting year, we donated a total of HK$689,934
(2017: HK$1,128,000).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BB 15 -

Content

HehERRE (B)

Index of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide
of Hong Kong Stock Exchange

RERH

Chapter(s)

General Containing -REE

Disclosure Relevant LEEE BEHEBE

and KPls Description Information Remarks BEE Hi BHES B

Environmental B

Aspect A1: Emissions BEAL R

General Disclosure: —REE:

Information on the policies and Environment FRERIAZEREHE BE

compliance with relevant laws and B kRS

regulations that have a significant BEREBERENNEL

impact on the issuer relating to EHHE  RETHET

air and greenhouse gas emissions, INCEVNZ diopiEl bR

discharges into water and land, and RABBIEER -

generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

KPI A1.1 The types of / As the Company's BRER HEmEER / ARRZEH
emissions and business does not BEAL REEREE TERREE
respective emissions involve the emission RARMEHE
data of air pollutants W BT

in large amounts, THE -
such figures are not
disclosed herein.

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas Environment BREN RERBAY RE
emissions in total - Energy BEM2 HERERE -H08R
and intensity Conservation

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous Environment BREY FELEEE BB
waste produced and - Pollution BEMI EMBERZ -5RBHA
intensity Prevention and £

Treatment

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous  Environment BREN FELAREE RHE
waste produced (in - Pollution BEAL BHREDL -F5EHA
tonnes) and, where  Prevention and WEEE) R (@
appropriate, intensity  Treatment EREE

KPI A1.5 Description of Environment The Company’s BREN BlREER RE ADRZEHK
measures to mitigate — Pollution business does not BEMS EMBERA 5ERME THERAEE
emissions and Prevention and involve the emission BRR RE B
results achieved Treatment of air pollutants in B e

large amounts.

KPI A1.6 Description of Environment BREN RUREEE RHE
how hazardous - Pollution BEME REZEEY -52HA
and non-hazardous Prevention and B R
wastes are handled,  Treatment EEENEE
reduction initiatives P ES

and results achieved
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RE g kEARE (B)
Chapter(s)
General Containing -REE
Disclosure Relevant RERE BEHBE
and KPls Description Information Remarks MEE  HR ANESH  HHE
Aspect A2: Use of Resources EBEA2: ERER
General Disclosure: — R
Policies on the efficient use of Environment BERERERNBEK - RBRE
resources.
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect Environment BREN RENEANKN RE
energy consumption - Energy BREA2 ERR/T -HNER
by type (e.g. Conservation & 8 0R (1
electricity, gas or oil) ERIH)
in total (kWh in'000s) BFEEAT
and intensity ERASE
BRFE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption  Environment BREY BEKER RE
in total and intensity - Reducing BEA22 HE -RLER
Resource RE
Wastage
KPI A2.3 Description Environment BREN ROERER RE
of energy use - Energy BEA23 WmiERE -BHER
efficiency initiatives  Conservation BRE
and results achieved
KPI A2.4 Description of Environment BREN RICKRER RE
whether there is any - Reducing BEA24 KELEATEE -BLERR
issue in sourcing Resource EE - IRk B
water that is fit Wastage RABKHE
for purpose, water HTEIR G
efficiency initiatives g
and results achieved
KPI A2.5 Total packaging Environment HREN HEmMAE R3E
material used for - Reducing BEAL EVHEORE -BOERR
finished products Resource (g8 Rk %
(in tonnes) and, Wastage (Em) &
if applicable, with EEBREE
reference to per unit
produced
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources BHEA3: RERXARER
General Disclosure: Policies on / As the Company's —BREEREEGTAYE ARRZEH
minimizing the issuer's significant business does RERRREFRERE A5 RERE
impact on the environment and not pose a AFEBHOHE - BERRER
natural resources. significant impact RINE R
on its surrounding [EEMEKNY
KPI A3.1 Description of the ~ / ecological BRER BREBED 2. WTER
significant impacts environment and the EBEAIN HEREARAA B o
of activities on the supply of natural BRMEARY
environment and resources, no such ZREFEME
natural resources disclosure is made BEBETED
and the actions herein. 118

taken to manage
them
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE - ERE

awE (8E)

Chapter(s)
General Containing -REE
Disclosure Relevant RERE BEHBE
and KPIs Description Information Remarks BEE #Hi BNES fFZ
Social T
Employment and Labor Practices BEREIER
Aspect B1: Employment BEB1: EE
General Disclosure: Information on  Staff —RER BETFHRE BT
the policies and compliance with - Employment fBE- - BEREA I -EREBE
relevant laws and regulations that Policy e B FEie
have a significant impact on the %ﬂb R R EA
issuer relating to compensation FERBHAOHE RE
and dismissal, recruitment and ﬁﬁ?‘ﬂ}\?ﬁij{ 2 H)
promotion, working hours, rest BEEERAGIHER
periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by Staff BRE xJI BRI BT
gender, employment - Employment BEBL ERER. -EEBE
type, age group and  Policy FRAR R
geographical region bl 2
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover  / The figures are BREEN RERN-F WIEEE R
rate by gender, considered sensitive E1EB1.2 HRAR K REE -
age group and and not disclosed BEHHE WMATHRE
geographical region herein. ERMAL®
Aspect B2: Health and Safety EHEB2: RERZ2
General Disclosure: Information on ~ Staff —RER BER#HtT: BT
the policies and compliance with - Occupational THERBRRERESRE -BELZER
relevant laws and regulations that Safety and BEMRENRE 8T BRE
have a significant impact on the Health HEGABEAFENR
issuer relating to providing a safe BERRROINER -
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.
KPI B2.1 Number and rate  Staff MeEy RAIEBEH BT
of work-related - Occupational BIZB21 MUMAE -BEZER
fatalities Safety and QS f2 &
Health
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to  Staff BRER RIBELX BT
work injury - Occupational ¥1EB22 IEBH -BELER
Safety and & B
Health
KPI B2.3 Description of Staff BEEN #HamiEm BI
occupational health - Occupational BEB23 MBXRE -BEZER
and safety measures  Safety and BE2EH -  BR
adopted, how they Health PAR BB T
are implemented and RERFZE

monitored
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RE g kEARE (B)
Chapter(s)
General Containing -RIHE
Disclosure Relevant RERE BEHBE
and KPls Description Information Remarks BEE #Hi BNEH fFZ
Aspect B3: Development and Training BEB3: #ERET
General Disclosure: Policies on Staff —REE:BBREAREE BT
improving employees' knowledge - Development J@ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬂ%& E’]%ﬂ EEk -BEERE
and skills for discharging duties and Training REERBOR - ulEINE ke
at work. Description of training opportunities B
activities.
KPI B3.1 The percentage of  / Approximately 78% BREN RENRE FHERkzEE
employees trained of male and female E1EB31 BERIED IRt %EH
by gender and staff received WZIEER BRHT78% °
employee category training. g
KPI B3.2 The average training  Staff BREY RUERREE BT
hours completed - Development B1EB32 HRES & -BERSE
per employee by and Training LZEETHKE Hlke
gender and employee  opportunities 3 35 B
category
Aspect B4: Labor Standards EHEB4: T EA
General Disclosure: Information on  Staff —BEE:BBEBLET BT
the policies and compliance with - Employment T?ﬁ BIBTHEE RE -EEHEBE
relevant laws and regulations that Policy THRITABEAZEN
have a significant impact on the *E BEERROIOER -
issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labor.
KPI B4.1 Description of Staff BREN HakIBR BI
measures to - Employment BIZB4 EEfIME -EBREBE
review employment  Policy ML R E
practices to avoid IRk®A%
child and forced T
labor
KPI B4.2 Description of steps ~ Staff BREN HAE®E BI
taken to eliminate - Employment B1EB42 EREBRE -EBEEX
such practices when  Policy ERERAIE
discovered BT SER A
g
Operating Practices & EEH
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management [EEBS5: ftEHEER
General Disclosure: Policies on Operation The Group has no —BEE:E f@ﬁfrfm’] = EEVEERE
managing environmental and social - Supply Chain  policy on managing iaii&ZiAﬂ 5 TR -ftERE fEHEdeR
risks of the supply chain. Management  the social risks of i BEMBUR -
supply chains.
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers Operation BREX RHEEy 28
by geographical - Supply Chain BEBL MEHERY -HRERE
region Management H i
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RE - -HeakEAHRE(E)

Chapter(s)

General Containing -RiKE

Disclosure Relevant RERE BEHBE

and KPls Description Information MEE  HR ANESH  fHHE

KPI B5.2 Description of Operation WIREN HABEER 28
practices relating - Supply Chain E1EB5.2 HEFMME -ftERE
to engaging Management f-mEy B
suppliers, number TB BN
of suppliers where H“EFHE
the practices are RARIER
being implemented, MR &
how they are 2%
implemented and
monitored

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility EEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure: Information on ~ Operation —BEE:BRMRLEE 28

the policies and compliance with - Product mAREMEREAZE - -EmBEXR

relevant laws and regulations that Quality B EERLEEEMN

have a significant impact on the REMAEOBER - k&

issuer relating to health and safety, THETABEAYEHK

advertising, labeling and privacy BEEERAGINER -

matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of

redress.

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total  Operation WREW CEXCDER 28
products sold or - Product B1ZB6.1 ERAHTHE -EREX
shipped subject to Quality ZRHERE
recalls for safety and B @m/AR R
health reasons MBS

KPI B6.2 Number of products Operation BREN ZEBRE 28
- and service-related - Product E1EB6.2 mERBH -EmBEX
complaints received  Quality BARBEAR
and how they are &8 7%
dealt with

KPI B6.3 Description of Operation WREN mHufigE 28
practices relating - Confidential 12863 RREMF -BEEAZ
to observing Information ERBHEME ARmAZG
and protecting of Customers i [
intellectual property and Intellectual
rights Property

KPI B6.4 Description of Operation BREX HOaEEh 28
quality assurance - Product EEB64 TBRERE -EREExR
process and recall Quality mERE
procedures

KPI B6.5 Description of Operation BRENX HOBEE 28
consumer data - Confidential HiZB6S EHRER -EERE
protection and Information of LB BUR BRAm
privacy policies, Customers and DA R 817 HEE
how they are Intellectual RERFZE

implemented and
monitored
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RE HgkERHRE(B)

Chapter(s)

General Containing -RIHE

Disclosure Relevant RERE BEHBEE

and KPls Description Information Remarks MEE  HR ANESH  HHE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption EmB7. RES

General Disclosure: Information on  Operation —BEBE-BENLE 28

the policies and compliance with - Ethics BHER BIFRERE -EEET

relevant laws and regulations that HEERETHETAS

have a significant impact on the EXYENRBEER

issuer relating to bribery, extortion, RO ER

fraud and money laundering.

KPI B7.1 Number of Operation BREN RERSRN =28
concluded legal - Ethics EEBIY HBTAZHE -BERT
cases regarding EERHLTE
corrupt practices BHEWMES
brought against FAARMENE
the issuer or its BRFAER
employees during
the reporting period
and the outcomes of
the cases

KPI B7.2 Description of Operation BRER HafiEE 28
preventive measures - Ethics EEB72 HWREWRE -BERT
and whistle- F R
blowing procedures, BTk E
how they are R7*
implemented and
monitored

Community HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment [EEBS: HERE

General Disclosure: Policies Charitable —BEE:BENLES REED

on community engagement to Activities HRTHREENELES

understand the needs of the ZNRRAXZBEDESE

communities where the issuer B AR R & B B

operates and to ensure its activities

take into consideration the

communities' interests.

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of Charitable BREW FTINEF LRHEH
contribution Activities #£1ZB8 &E

KPI B8.2 Resources Charitable BRER HEIEE LRHED
contributed to the  Activities 1512882 FEAER

focus area
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREABE

Perennial International Limited is firmly committed to statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards with emphasis
on transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness.

The Corporate Governance Code

The Directors confirm that the Company has fully complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) attached to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as Appendix 14,
and adopted recommended best practices set out in the Code
whenever appropriate. During the year, Ms. Koo Di An, Louise,
Chairman, was unable to hold a meeting with the Independent
Non-Executive Directors without the presence of the Executive
Directors due to other prior business engagements.

The Board

The Board’'s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and
supervises executive management to whom the responsibility of
managing the day-to-day operation of the Group is delegated. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in integrity,
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective
manner. It has adopted formal terms of reference which details
its functions and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities
include, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans, ensuring
prudent conduct of operations within laws and approved policies,
ensuring and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of
affairs. Day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division who
are given clear directions as to his/her powers and are required
to report back to the Board. Functions reserved to the Board
and delegated to the management are reviewed periodically. The
Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share responsibility
for the proper direction of the Company. The Company has
formal service contract with each Director setting out the key
terms and conditions of his/her appointment.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board currently consists of eight (8) members whose
details are set out on pages 49 to 51 of this report. It meets
quarterly and holds specific meetings as and when they are
deemed necessary. The Board held four (4) meetings during the
year ended 31st December 2018. Notices of Board meetings
were given to the Directors at least 14 days prior to the date
of the meetings with the agenda and any accompanying Board
papers sent at least three days before the date of the meetings.
All Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. Minutes of the Board meetings and
committee meetings, recording in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, are kept by the Company
Secretary and sent to the Directors or the committee members
(as appropriate) for their comment and records within reasonable
time after the meeting is held. They are also available for
inspection by the Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director. A record of the Directors’ attendance at
Board meetings is set out on page 45 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its
history, mission and businesses to the Directors. The Directors
are also provided with the opportunity to visit the Group's
operational facilities and meet with the management to gain a
better understanding of its business operations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

During the year, all Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs
Mon Chung Hung, Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, Mon Wai Ki, Vicky,
Mon Tiffany, Koo Di An, Louise, Lau Chun Kay, Lee Chung
Nai, Jones and Chung Kit Ying, received regular briefings and
updates on the Group's business, operations, risk management
and corporate governance matters. Materials on new or changes
to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group were
provided to the Directors. They also attended regulatory update
sessions and seminars on relevant topics. All Directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training
record pursuant to the Code.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board
and each Board Committee also has access to independent
professional advice where appropriate.
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The Board (Continued)

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors and the senior management of the Group for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that
of the Chief Executive Officer. Their respective responsibilities
are clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman
manages the Board and is responsible for ensuring that adequate
information is provided to the Directors in a timely manner and
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for implementing strategies, policies, and for conducting the
Group’s businesses.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
Directors that have served longest on the Board must retire at
each annual general meeting, and may offer themselves for re-
election. Notwithstanding that the Non-Executive Directors are
appointed for a specific term of one to three years, they are also
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
as other Directors do. To enhance accountability, any further
re-appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, is subject to
a separate resolution to be passed by the shareholders. In
addition, Directors who are appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment according to the Company's Bye-
laws.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
confirms receipt of a written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors for confirmation of his
independence to the Company. The Company considers all its
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’'s and the Group's performance,
position and prospects. The Directors should prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis,
with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.
The Board’'s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extends to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to
regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of
them having specific terms of reference, to consider matters
relating to specialized areas and to advise the Board or, where
appropriate, to decide on behalf of the Board on such matters.
Details of these committees and their principal terms of
reference are as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its
current members include three (3) Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the Company’s website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the
Stock Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices,
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors and any
question of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the external auditors; meeting
with the external auditors to discuss the nature and scope of
the audit, and matters of concern when requested to do so
by the external auditors; reviewing the interim financial report
and annual consolidated financial statements before they are
submitted to the Board; discussing problems and reservations
arising from the interim review and final audit, and any other
matters the external auditors may wish to discuss, and reviewing
the external auditors’ letter to the management and the
management’s response; considering any major investigation
findings on internal control and risk management systems
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
the management’s response to these findings and reviewing
arrangements which employees may use, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control, risk management systems or other matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year with the
external auditors. The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings
during the year ended 31st December 2018. An attendance
record of its members at the Audit Committee meetings is set
out on page 45 of this report.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
financial report and the audited financial results of the Group
for the year ended 31st December 2018 and the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's internal control and risk management systems and
made recommendations to the Board. Since March 2016, the
Board has engaged an outsourced consultant to perform internal
control review services for the Group.

The Audit Committee has full and direct access to the
outsourced internal audit consultant, reviews the reports on all
audits performed and monitors the audit performance. The Audit
Committee also reviews the adequacy of the scope, functions,
competency and resources of the outsourced internal audit
functions.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st
November 2005. Its current members include three (3)
Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive
Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policies, determining the
specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors and
senior management, including terms of salary, discretionary
bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension rights, compensation
payments and other long-term incentive schemes, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors and senior management. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee setting out its
authority and responsibilities are available on the Company's
website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange's
website.

The Remuneration Committee met once (1) in the year of
2018. During the meeting, the committee members discussed
the policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management, assessed the performance of the Executive
Directors and approved the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors. An attendance record of its members at
the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out on page 45 of
this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who
are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including,
without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
backgrounds, skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
on a regular basis, reviewing the candidates’ qualification and
competence and the policy on board diversity, assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and the requirement on board
diversity, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and
transparent. Having taken into account the above objective
criteria, the Nomination Committee was of the view that the
Company has a diverse Board. The revised terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee setting out its authority and
responsibilities are available on the Company’s website at
http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Nomination Committee met once (1) in the year of 2018.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the
procedures and criteria which should be adopted by them
in nominating candidates for directorship and agreed that
such criteria should include the candidates’ professional
background, their financial and commercial experience and
their past track record with other listed companies (if any).
Candidates who satisfy the relevant criteria are then short-listed
by the chairman of the Nomination Committee before their
nominations are proposed to the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee subsequently meets to select the final
candidates and submit its recommendation to the Board for
its final approval. An attendance record of its members at the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out on page 45 of this
report.
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Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November
2005. Its current members include four (4) Executive Directors,
one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors, who are:

Executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Ms

MON Chung Hung
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
. MON Wai Ki, Vicky

Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i)
reviewing corporate communication issued by the Company
so as to ensure compliance in every respect with the listing
requirements contained in the Listing Rules; and (ii) reviewing
transactions entered into by the Company so as to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations applicable
to the Company whether of Hong Kong or elsewhere. To
enhance corporate governance, the Compliance Committee
was also delegated with the responsibilities of (i) developing
and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
(iii) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report. Where necessary, the Compliance
Committee would seek professional advice in respect of the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations so as to improve the existing compliance procedures
of the Company.

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the
year ended 31st December 2018. During the meeting, the
committee members discussed the recent amendments to the
Listing Rule relating to corporate governance and resolved that
more resources should be allocated for meeting the increasingly
stringent requirements of the regulatory authorities. It was also
suggested all future amendments to the Listing Rules should
be circulated to members of the senior management so that
they all understand and can help the Company to comply with
its obligations under the Listing Rules and seminars on Listing
Rules updates and corporate governance practices should be
arranged for members of the senior management and other
interested Directors. An attendance record of its members at
the Compliance Committee meeting is set out on page 45 of
this report.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The Board has engaged an outsourced internal audit consultant
since March 2016, to perform independent internal control
review services. Thereafter, the outsourced consultant has
assisted the Group to perform a review of the effectiveness
of internal control system for certain selected processes.
The assessment results and proposed improvement
recommendations were reported to the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions and, in particular,
consider the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function. Based on the
findings of the outsourced internal audit consultant and the
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considers that
the Group’s internal control system is effective. Areas for
improvement identified and appropriate measures taken so as
to provide assurance that key business and operational risks are
identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board has established to provide
effective internal control are as follows:

(@) a comprehensive monthly management reporting system
is in place providing financial and operational performance
indicators to the management, and the relevant financial
information for reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b)  management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities
are documented and communicated; and

(c) system and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including liquidity, credit, market,
business, regulatory, operational and reputational risks that
may have an impact on the Group.
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Risk Management Function

The Group has established a robust risk management
framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee
and Senior Management of the Group. The Board determines the
nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility
for monitoring the overall effectiveness of risk management.
The Group identifies key risks that would adversely affect
the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and
prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of standard
criteria. Risk mitigation plans are then established by the risk
owners to manage the risks to acceptable level.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting. The Audit Committee assesses the external auditors,
taking into account factors such as the performance and
quality of the audit and the objectivity and independence
of auditors. The existing auditors of the Company are
PricewaterhouseCoopers who were first appointed in 1997.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group was charged HK$1,525,000 and HK$764,000 by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31st December 2018. The non-
auditing services mainly consist of taxation services.

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the Board has adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
complied with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies have also been used and applied consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 58 and 64 of this
annual report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ and employees’ securities transactions on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
they had complied with the required standards of the said code
during the year.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant
to the Company’s Bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend
and vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to
appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead
of him. In addition, shareholders who hold not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company shall have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. The requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists. If the Directors do not within 21
days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3)
months from the said date.

Moreover, shareholders who hold not less than one-twentieth
of the paid up capital of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to put forward
a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at an annual general meeting. The Company shall
not be bound to give notice of the proposed resolution or
circulate a statement with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution to shareholders unless (a) a copy of
the requisition signed by the requisitionists, or two or more
copies which between them contain the signatures of all the
requisitionists, is deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than six (6) weeks before the meeting in the
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one (1) week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition and (b) there is deposited or tendered with the
requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving effect thereto. If, however, after a copy of the
requisition requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at
the registered office of the Company, an annual general meeting
is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the copy has
been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the time
required as referred to above shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the
Chairmen, any member from the respective committees, must
attend the annual general meetings of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. External auditors shall also be invited to
attend the Company’s annual general meetings and are available
to assist the Directors in addressing queries from shareholders
relating to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and
content of their auditors’ report.

For each substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a
separate resolution would be proposed. Resolutions put to the
vote at any general meeting (other than those on procedural and
administrative matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding
the conduct of the poll are explained to the shareholders at the
commencement of each general meeting, and questions (if any)
from shareholders regarding the voting procedures would be
answered.

Investor Relations

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates.

To promote effective communication with the public
at large, the Company maintains a website on which
comprehensive information about the Company, its major
businesses, financial information and particulars of Directors
are posted. The Company's publications, including press
releases, announcements, annual and interim reports,
shareholders circulars are being made available on this website
(http://perennial.todayir.com).

In addition, shareholders who have any enquiries regarding the
Company may send their enquiries in writing to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary who will then forward the same to
the Board and/or the relevant Board committees for response
(where appropriate). The above policy will be reviewed on
a regular basis to ensure effective communication with the
shareholders.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board, Audit EEREES BEXZEES %
Committee, Remuneration Committee, BIZES - EEZES EEZ
Nomination Committee, Compliance EE€RRE RS2 HFETLE
Committee and General Meetings
Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance
Board Committee = Committee = Committee = Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EZe ERZEe ¥MZEe REZEE ERZEg BE
g% gE 23 - - g
Total number of meetings held  HZ-F—\F
during the year ended +-A=+-A
31st December 2018 LFEERETZ
2RLY 4 2 1 1 1 1
Number of meetings attended: 1 & & X &
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. MON Chung Hung RRELE
(Chief Executive Officer & (7T B 483 R
Deputy Chairman) ey, 4 NATER NATEA NATER 1 1
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco B EE 4 NATEB NATEB NATER 1 1
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky LEBTT 4 NATEER NATEA N/A 7 i R 1 1
Ms. MON Tiffany HERBRKL 4 NATER NATEA N/A 7 i FB 1 1
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise BRZOL(£E)
(Chairman) 4 2 1 1 1 1
Independent Non-Executive ~BUEHTEE
Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay IR LS 3 1 1 1 1 1
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones FREAE 4 2 1 1 1 1
Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying BRLLT 4 2 1 1 1 1
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DIRECTORS” REPORT
EERE

The Board submits their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2018.

Principal Activities and Geographical

Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of electric cable and wire products. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the vyear by

geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

EZo U REESRERBE_T—N\F+
—A=t— EIJtEF‘Z#“%*%%E\HM&#&iE

REBXRBREEIA D20

ARBIZ T BEBRAIRERER EMBAAE
EREFVENEEERNEGERER - NE
RAIZEGH NI E MR ERMFE28 ©

AEEREITBMEI D ZAREXBERROM
RIS NN R R B

EFEHBHRE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for TFTXRELRAEBEBERFRNZ ¥4  BER
the last five financial years is set out below: BEME:
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —+F —T—RF —HE —HF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHETT FAET FETT FET
Revenue g 355,744 364,401 359,035 401,669 455,403
(Loss)/profit for the 2F(ER)/
year S A (1,760) 19,283 14,622 11,688 18,917
Total assets BEE 732,950 692,770 637,266 642,719 634,110
Total liabilities wafE (154,865) (130,353) (132,796) (136,33b) (141,037)
Total equity FEl: 578,085 562,417 504,470 506,384 493,073
Analysis of the Group’s Performance REBZERKRRDW
An analysis of the Group's performance is set forth in the ZAEBEZEBKRBOMBNFEEZFSH ZE

Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 8 of this report.

FREN -



Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers respectively,
classified by individual entity, are as follows:
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EEWmE(E)

FTREEFREED
THARE EERBERES - AEF
SRS R RERHEAD LT

%
Purchases i
- the largest supplier - BRRHEER 38.5%
- five largest suppliers combined - ERHER 69.0%
Sales fi=h=
- the largest customer -RAEFP 24.8%
- five largest customers combined - RAREF 66.0%

None of the directors, their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 65 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Principal Properties
Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share issued in the year

No new shares were issued during the year. Details of shares
issued as at 31st December 2018 are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31st December 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the laws of
Bermuda, amounted to HK$23,615,000. In addition, the
Company's contributed surplus, amounting to HK$62,548,000 as
at 31st December 2018, is available for distribution. However,
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of the contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the net realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its share capital
and share premium account. The Company’s share premium
account with a balance of HK$15,885,000 as at 31st December
2018 is distributable in the form of fully-paid bonus shares.

EF RIZEEBRBEBAL(ERR LWAA)
HEMBRREBRESHAREEARFL% N L
ARz RR)WEN Lt 2 T EHERK
EPHRHEAE R -

EERDE
AFEAAEE Y $ERNFESH 2 HARE
&R -

EEeTRFRERPAKE -

FEYE
BEERERERZIEMEZHBIREEY
B EM sE16 -

RERBITRA
RERNLTEEBETHRE - BELARF AT —
NFE+-_A=1+—"BzZEBETREAEREEY
%R R KT5E20 o

Al 5 K 7% 8
RIE—N\F+_A=1+—H KRQAREBR
ERPIFTE 2] #5 K 6 & 8 23,615,000
T W RRARR-_ZE—NFE+_A=1+—
Az B Rt AB162548,0007T @ JhA[ it o
Ik o SR iR () AR R R R (R 1B R 1+ A% 8
BEX)BEEEINBHEE RMWEEEZA]E
REFEEREAE ERAEBOEEIR 2L
Mo AARB R ERSKRMEE - kBB
BHREEDIR - KRR ZE—NEFE+=-A=
+— 82 K& 7= E IR 4 # % %15,885,0007T AJ
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Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$689,934.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the

Company’s Listed Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's shares
during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares was held by the public
as at 25th March 2019, being the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report, in accordance with Rule 8.08
of the Listing Rules.

Analysis of Bank Loans and Other

Borrowings

The Group’'s bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st
December 2018, in accordance with the repayment schedule
(without taking into account repayment on demand clause), are
repayable over the following periods:

B

AERAAKE 2 Z =5 BEE689,9348 T -

BARBERE

ARRZARNMAL RELBERZ R -
B 5 R O3 8 B AR e R
RESFEFROZELBERAT -

BE HERBEAATZLED
%
ARRYEEAFEABREEMBRN - AR
ARHEEAMNBARERERAFEANEE B
Bk EERARE ZBKD -

AWIEFRE
REARFUAFAEEARSNEMRREE
EFfA-BE_ZT-AF=A-t+HEA AKX
FRETIRERATEY  ARARBHTR
MBEESZ _THRAARFAE FaLTH
AI%F8.08K 2 R E °

RITERREMEE DT

AEBR_Z-N\F+-_A=+—HZRTE
REEMEE REERFERY BZEPZEN
EAIREREEMRR - AR T HREE

Bank Trust receipt
loans loans Total
BITER FRURBER R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Within 1 year 1R 24,800 24,734 49,5634
Between 1 and 2 years 1822F 4,800 — 4,800
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 7,200 = 7,200
36,800 24,734 61,534




Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung
(Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman)
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, Ms. Mon Tiffany and Mr. Lee Chung Nai,
Jones will retire in accordance with clause 111 of the Company's
Bye-laws at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company. All of them being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent non-
executive director is not more than three years and subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-
laws.

Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management
The biographical details of the directors and senior management
of the Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 68, is the founder of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive
Director, Authorised Representative and a member of the
compliance committee of the Board. Mr. Mon has over 41 years
of experience in the electric cable and wire industry. He is
responsible for the Group’s overall strategic planning and policy
making. Mr. Mon is a director of Spector Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also the husband
of Ms. Koo Di An, Louise and the father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki,
Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 59, is an Executive Director,
Authorised Representative and a member of the compliance
committee of the Board. He joined the Group in 1986. Mr. Siu
has over 31 years of experience in the electric cable and wire
industry. Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director of the Group and
is responsible for sales of the Group’s products and product
development.

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 44, is an Executive Director and
a member of the compliance committee of the Board. She
graduated from the Central Queensland University in Australia
with a Bachelor of Communications degree. She joined the
Group in 2004. As the Marketing Executive, she participates in
developing marketing strategies. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon
Chung Hung and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister
of Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 38, is an Executive Director and a
member of the compliance committee of the Board. She holds a
bachelor’'s double major degree in economics and management
from the University of Sydney, Australia, Diploma in Company
Direction from Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and “RSSGB”
certification from Six Sigma Institute. She joined the Group
in 2002. As the Marketing Communications Manager, she
coordinates marketing strategies and is also responsible for the
information system of the Company. She is the daughter of Mr.
Mon Chung Hung and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the younger
sister of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 67, is the Chairman, a Non-
Executive Director, the chairman of the compliance committee
and a member of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees of the Board. Ms. Koo is a director of Spector
Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
She is also the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and the mother
of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc., MBA, M.A., aged 70, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees and a member of the
compliance committee of the Board. He joined the Group in
1996. Mr. Lau is a registered professional engineer and holds
a master’s degree in business administration and a bachelor's
degree in electrical engineering from the University of Hong
Kong, and a master degree in history and a master degree
of Arts Course in Philosophy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a Life President of the Hong Kong
Electrical Contractors Association, and a past President and
current Secretary General of The Federation of Asian and
Pacific Electrical Contractors Associations. He is also the
Executive Director of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors. He has over 48 years of experience in
management and engineering.

Mr. Lee Chung Nai, Jones, aged 70, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Board. Mr. Lee
has over 37 years of experience in international trade in toys,
among which Mr. Lee had also operated a toys factory with
2,000 workers in China for 10 years. Mr. Lee had also operated
a subsidiary company in Hong Kong for a listed company in
Australia. Mr. Lee has his own toy company.

Ms. Chung Kit Ying, aged 44, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and compliance committee of the Board. She joined the Group
in December 2017. Ms. Chung obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Business Administration and a degree of Master of Science in
Finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1997 and
2007, respectively. Ms. Chung has worked in an international
firm of certified public accountants and the finance department
of a listed group, and has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and auditing. Ms. Chung is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Kevin Kwok Wah LEUNG, aged 56, LLB, MBA, MSC, MFIN,
FCPA, FCCA, FHKSI, was the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. LEUNG is responsible for financial and accounting
management, corporate governance and administration of
the Company. He joined the Group in 2013. Mr. Leung’s
experience includes public listings in Hong Kong SAR, United
States and Singapore, financial due diligence and internal
and external audit work. Before joining the Group, he was a
Financial Controller and Company Secretary of a main-board
listed company in Hong Kong and was a senior audit manager
at PricewaterhouseCoopers. He obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
(Honor) of Law from Manchester Metropolitan University, a
Master degree of Business Administration from Western Ontario
University, a Master of Science degree in Corporate Governance
and Directorship from Hong Kong Baptist University, a master
degree of Finance from Curtin University of Technology, an
Advanced Diploma in Specialist Taxation and a professional
diploma in insolvency from the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and is a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He resigned
on 17th September 2018.

Mr. Seto Sai Cheong Paul, aged 57, is the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (“TIHK"). Mr. Seto is also
a Certified Tax Advisor (“CTA") of TIHK. Mr. Seto is responsible
for financial and accounting management, corporate governance
and administration of the Company. He joined the Group in
September 2018. Mr. Seto has over 30 years of experience in
accounting and taxation including senior financial executives
of three main board listed companies in Hong Kong and chief
financial officer of multinational corporation.

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu, aged 47, is the Group’'s Assistant
Manufacturing Manager and is responsible for sales and
marketing activities. He joined the Group in 1997, holds a
Bachelor degree and Master degree in Mechanical Engineering
and has over 22 years of experience in the electric cable and
wire industry.

Mr. Au Sui Cheung, aged 40, FCCA, HKICPA, was the Finance
Manager and Company Secretary of the Company and was
responsible for finance functions and the Company Secretary
work. He joined the Group in 2013, holds a Bachelor degree
in Business and Business Administration — Accounting and has
over 17 years of experience in accounting and auditing. He
resigned on 28th February 2019.
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Lai Wing Hong, aged 41, is the Finance Manager and
Company Secretary of the Company. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor (Honours) Degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
a Master Degree in Business Administration from the Holmes
Institute. Mr. Lai joined the Group on 1st March 2019 and is
responsible for finance functions and the Company Secretary
work. He has over 17 years of experience in auditing and
accounting including the senior financial executive of a GEM
board listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Victor Krassovski, aged 46, is the Group's Director of
Operations and is responsible for manufacturing and supply
chain operations. He joined the Group on 16th August 2018,
holds a Bachelor Degree in Electronics Engineering and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from Peking University and
has over 20 years of experience in Global Operations in Asia.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts that are Significant in Relation

to the Group’s Business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which its holding company
or the Company’s subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
director of the Company and the directors’ connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEHE(E)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

in Equity or Debt Securities

At 31st December 2018, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

REETRABRRASDE
B %>

2 N\F+ZA=t—B BREEFLH
BiEpI3B2G 2 MEMBEFE 2 B M AT & -
ARAREERTETBRABERARINEIERH
EE(EERBHRBEEROEXVED) 2 B&H

mﬁ%ﬁﬂfﬂﬁ
H?ﬂ%‘fﬂﬂ

Ordinance (“SFO") as recorded in the register required to MHERNMEES R HEAEZEZR ARG CE
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the @Mz ZERERW T
Company) were as follows:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company ZAQTHRKR010B T z2EBR(BKRM]
(“Shares”)
Total
interests
Number of shares as % of the
B EE relevant
Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share
Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
BRESEEE
ERITRA
®H 5PN R iR R EEER Hip &= BRER ZEDH
MON Chung Hung 18,000 5,258,000 140,250,000 - 145,526,000 73.14%
&R (note 1) (note 2)
(MtE1) (P 5E2)
KOO Di An, Louise 5,258,000 140,268,000 - - 145,526,000 73.14%
B % (note 3)
(Bt &E3)
LAU Chun Kay 138,000 - - - 138,000 0.07%

2




Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

in Equity or Debt Securities (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(“Shares”) (Continued)

note 1: Mr. Mon Chung Hung is the husband of Ms. Koo Di An, Louise,
Mr. Mon Chung Hung is thus deemed to be interested in
5,258,000 shares by virtue of his wife's interest therein.

note 2: The 140,250,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector
Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned as to 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and

as to the remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

note 3: Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung.
Ms. Koo is thus deemed to be interested in 140,268,000

Shares by virtue of her husband's interest therein.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31st December 2018, no short positions were recorded in the
Register of Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO.

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries
or its holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or its specified undertakings
or other associated corporation.
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B o

BfsE2:  1£140,250,0008% 19 B Spector Holdings
Limited B # A @ 522 7)99.9% % 17
RN FHIRBEEHES B TH01%HE M
TUTHER -

B 3E3 - Eﬁk;ﬂzi%ﬂ)ﬁ*&%imé% Bzt
HAELARZERGCEEESWEAEE
140,268,0000% {7 °

riuprEEEYAETRE HRZZE—N\F+=A

=t—B REZE %&Hﬁgf%fﬁJ%Zﬂ%ZﬁE
MEEZEZENTEBITHRAE Z M #EE KX
BERMAL EX AL -

RERTAMEE - AR7 - EWBARRLS
BRAFMET I ALY REAAREER
TETRABREREIRERARETLR)
RARA R IEH L E A IBEAE 2 R
LA DA AR ETAA o

55



56

Perennial International Limited 1B %8 £ @ A R A 7

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEHE(E)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the
Share Capital of the Company

Other than the interests of the directors and chief executives of
the Company as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2018,
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO records interests (as defined in the SFO) in the
Company of the following persons.

FTERRRAQRRAR ZH# &

BREXHBBZARBDEERTIETBRABZ
& R-TFE-NF+-_A=1t—H0 RE
EHLREGRIIFEIIBHRZREMFE ZERL
fPrecss - U TAGCRHBEARRIZHESE (ERL
R BEG) -

Total

interests

Number of Shares as % of the

RGEE relevant

Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share

Name interests interests interests interests interests capital

mEREER

BRTRAK

®A BAER Rk R FEER Hit#Em HRER ZADL

Spector Holdings Limited 140,250,000 - - - 140,250,000 70.49%
(note 1)
(Pt 1)

Fang Zhun Chun 9,958,000 - - - 9,958,000 5.00%

FiRE
note 1. The share capital of the Spector Holdings Limited is owned as Mf3E1:  Spector Holdings Limited Z BE AN H #199.9%

t0 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining
0.1% by Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31st December 2018, no short positions were recorded in the
Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of substantial
shareholders required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware,
there were no person who, as at 31st December 2018, directly
or indirectly held or was beneficially interested in shares
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAREEEHES  BRTHN0I%ABAR
LR -

LA REARER R_FT—-N\F+_H
=t—H REZIHFRPERGIZ6CHKZHE
MEEZIBERRZEMNDEZ AR ELTH
W AR B R

BREXHEEIN RBEFHAA R-F—N\
F+_A=1T—HB UBEMATEEXHE
FHERERZEAARGSIAEMB AR HITR
Kb% A b2 B friEss o

BEEEHK
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TAEEXBERIEERTERAL -



Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
None of the Directors has an interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

Business Review
Business review of the Group is set forth in the Chairman'’s
Statement on pages 6 to 8 of this report.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors
of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or an associated company (if made by the Company).

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % A R &

To the Shareholders of Perennial International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perennial International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 65 to 155, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December 2018;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;
° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for

the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and
° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:
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B R BRI E (8)

Bt
REBZBGAMASRON(EXSFENELE
STRIXATEREFAD - JPIBLR E&KE -
VYERTTAFNEMEREREMT -

FAREETSE
RBRBAFTHERBERMANEXZAE - R/Y
FHEAMBREANBARREEZNFER ° &
LEFRAERMBABEREAMBHRRLLER
BREETREN - RMATSHELFHENR
EBENER -

BAERSTHAIOBEREAFTEB AL T :

Key Audit Matter
HRETEER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMWETNMEERREESSE

Valuation for land and buildings and investment

We assessed

the competence, capabilities and

properties

THRBFRREMENMGE

Refer to notes 2.6, 2.7, 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
2RV SRR E26 2.7 - 15K%16 °

objectivity of the valuer by verifying their qualifications,
discussing the scope of their work and reviewing the
terms of their engagement.
BMFETHAEMNB IR ZFEEIRTEGE B
EREHER BHANREMETHNIESERERN
HERKERK -

We carried out procedures to test whether
property-specific standing data supplied to the valuer by
management reflected the underlying property records
held by the Group.

BMETTZEER  NAAEBEERETHERMD
MERTHBERARUEBEMHSEBD ENLHE -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
BB S (8)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

BRETSEGE)

Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETNMEERREESSE

The Group owns land and buildings in Hong Kong
and the People's Republic of China (the “PRC") for
office premises and manufacturing plants respectively,
and owns investment properties in Hong Kong for
investment purpose (together, the “Properties”). These
are classified as property, plant and equipment and
investment properties according to their use and their
carrying values are HK$336 million and HK$55 million as
at 31st December 2018 respectively. For the year ended
31st December 2018, revaluation surplus of HK$2 million
relating to land and buildings classified as property, plant
and equipment and revaluation gain of HK$3 million
relating to the investment properties are recorded in the
consolidated income statement, revaluation surplus of
HK$37 million relating to land and buildings classified
as property, plant and equipment is recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
AEBETEBRPEAREMBE((FE]ES T RE
FORRERREREEREARCEASEEREY
XEREAR(GBIZEME]D YRBEBES R
RYE BEEZRBARKREYMER RZZE-—N\F+=
R=+—8 BKREMES 5 /3.36/8 % T X0.55E & T °
BHE_T-N\F+A=+—HBLLFE BHEIELRY
¥ HEL®K ﬁMim&@+E%E%Q§%%E&ﬁ
B ERREMENERNESAESTREEEREER
IR - MBEOBERME - f%& ﬁ%iﬂ&@%
EfRAKOIVIBETARNGZErEKERIIE -

The valuations of these Properties are inherently
subjective due to, among other factors, the individual
nature of each property and its location.

MR (AR B ZEYENEMNMEE R KT
WZEMENHERERTFEEE M

The valuations of these Properties were carried out by
an independent professional qualified valuer.

ZEPENBEDABIEXA ERMGERMETT -

We assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs used by the valuer by
performing market research on comparable transactions
available for properties located in Hong Kong and
the average cost of construction and useful life for
properties located in the PRC. Where the assumptions
applied by the valuer were outside our expected range
or otherwise unusual, we discussed the matters with
the valuer and management and obtained additional
evidence to support the explanations received.

HREEDE ZMAATSILREFEEIFESR
Z AEGEEMAANEIERIRZ2ENEENE - 8
RAEBEYE  BMRTFAREXERRAEAFEEST
MISHMA  AEEEMAANFEFERRIRZENAE
e MAEMMANBRRBELRMESNNSEI LR

HiEEBR RACEGEMREEESRBHRES
BEYERTERABERBIZRERIS -

We concluded that the assumptions used in the
valuations were supportable in light of the available
evidence.

ERAENERE  RARAGEMANRRBEEE -




Key Audit Matters (Continued)
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
B R BRI E (8)

FRRETSEHGE)

Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETNMEERREESSE

Properties in Hong Kong were valued using the direct
comparison approach, with reference to the sales prices
per square foot of comparable properties and adjusted
for key differences in key attributes such as location and
size. Factory buildings in the PRC were valued using the
depreciated replacement cost approach, with reference
to the cost of construction per square metre in the
relevant locations and apply assumptions for estimated
depreciation over the useful life, to arrive at the final
valuation.
UREBEBNZEMENEBELR ZETHE  EFR 2
ZABMESTAIRNEBL R E2EAENEER
& (Pl a0 iz BZ 3tb B 2 T 78 K/ )N) B9 71 [B) 7 4 L A E A 2 -
MVRABENIHEFAMESESERK AN ZETHE B
T2EZEHBHEEFETFIANEEXNEIRATAE
AEROMBETIE  UWSH&KHE -

The significance of the estimates and judgments
involved warrants specific audit focus in this area.
HREEBRERAIRNGEFTRAG T HEE - it
FEARBNBERIESTREHER -

Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
B R B AR ()

Responsibilities of Directors and the
Audit Committee for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EERELZEER G M KR
RAERRNERE

BERAERARARBRASSHMAGEME
(BRMBHREER)RBB(ABEG) OB E
RERBEEMTENREMBRE  WHHE
RRRERAVBHRINEE N FEARRE
=X 5 AR T 8 B A0 B K #8 SR PRt BT 75 &Y 73 BB 42

=
= ©

EREFEMBRRE EFRENG BF
B EQENeE ) YHEERBRTHE LR
BREFUEMER UREAKRBLLERSF
At RIEFEEH BEEEFRIFLE
2R BEEBERNERDE -

ERZASAAAEE EREOVEREA
2 o
%gﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
\EE

ZFWER  EHRANBRERBBELAE
FE B R FE Sk 58 AR 1T B BUAY B K 5 AR R B
BEBERE YHASERMER XA R
o RMEZRARE-—NN\—F(RRIA)E
WIRAM T (ERERB)RERMNER » Kt
ZHONR I EREE A B H) o BAT TR AR E
WAREEMEMBALTE FRAREREE -
EEREERKINRFRE - BTREREBELR(E
AEFEETHERS  EX-EANERK
a7 FE B AR BE B 3R o 5 AR IRk R LA B BRRF Sk 8
ReIE - IIRAIETA T M E I8 SOE AR A
EFERAMBRRERERBEEEMBRE
?Wi%ﬁ@ﬁi'%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
EE K °



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
BB S (8)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Conﬂnued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Yuk Ting Mabel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2019
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CONSOnLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEE@mR

r the year ended 31st December 2018
ZE-NFEST A= —HIFE

&
Hm

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FET FE T
Revenue I 2= 5 355,744 364,401
Cost of sales 85 & B AN (299,538) (282,099)
Gross profit ¥ 56,206 82,302
Other income H AU = 6 7,128 8,163
Distribution expenses ki (9,220) (9,150)
Administrative expenses THEAX (54,186) (52,213)
Other operating income/(expenses), net  H b &L & U A~
(AX) %8 1,798 (2,641)
Operating profit £ 7 7 1,726 26,461
Finance costs B & B 8 (1,104) (1,000)
Profit before taxation R %4 B 4= 622 25,461
Income tax T IE 9(a) (2,382) (6,178)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to  ZNA 7] i% IR fE {5
shareholders of the Company KEE(FB),/
il (1,760) 19,283
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings FREXRRES
per share (cents) (E518) / &F
(i) 1 (0.9) 9.7

The notes on pages 73 to 155 are an integral part of these S$73Z=I16EMNMEAGZE VB MRMHEESS
consolidated financial statements. 17 o



66

Perennial International Limited 12 %8 £ @ AR A 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AEZEWER

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_E—)\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEEZ(E18), % F (1,760) 19,283
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Htb2mam, (BX):
Item that will not be reclassified Exresmols
subsequently to profit or loss Z2EZMIER
Revaluation surplus on land and buildings, THREFZEM
net of tax BER - HIKRIA 30,789 23,286
ltems that may be reclassified to HigrgeasihiolE
profit or loss ZEE/MNIER
Exchange difference arising from B AR MB®E
translation of financial statements of HigzEERER
subsidiaries (13,361) 19,358
Other comprehensive income NEFHEME2E R &=
for the year 17,428 42,644
Total comprehensive income for the year AR ERE R EAG
attributable to shareholders AEERE2ERD
of the Company 15,668 61,927

The notes on pages 73 to 155 are an integral part of these S73E156H M T AGZ A M EHRE N EE
consolidated financial statements. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a5 B 35K R R

As at 31st December 2018

R-ZF-NEFEF+-A=1—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FET F& T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEMBEE
Land use rights T Hb (5 R 14 26,696 28,470
Property, plant and equipment Y WEMREE 15 402,067 345,655
Investment properties "B E 16 55,290 52,150
Non-current deposits EREE] £ 1,101 1,105
Deferred tax assets FEIEFIEE B 9(b) 3,832 4,742
488,986 432,122
Current assets mE)E E
Inventories 75 17 90,934 101,330
Trade and bill receivables EWESRRREERE 18 90,330 80,682
Other receivables, deposits and HMEKER - 5e
prepayments NESEENE 11,442 7,251
Taxation recoverable Al Uy (B F¢ 18 1,262 2,764
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEEY 19 49,996 68,621
243,964 260,648
Total assets BB E 732,950 692,770
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to shareholders of — ZN/2 &) i% 5 JE 16 # &5
the Company
Share capital & A 20 19,896 19,896
Other reserves Hih#E 21 261,981 244,553
Retained earnings IR A & 21 296,208 297,968
Total equity M 578,085 562,417
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FEnmEBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIERAE 9(b) 44,047 39,092
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

ARk (&)

As at 31st December 2018
RZFE-—NF+ZHA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B it FET FA& T
Current liabilities mEBaE

Trade and bill payables ERNESFERERE 22 17,387 22,817

Other payables and accruals Hh FE S FRIB K EET
2 22 29,783 29,325
Taxation payable FE < Bt 18 2,114 1,498
Bank loans RITE R 23 36,800 -
Trust receipt loans EAKREER 23 24,734 37,621
110,818 91,261
Total liabilities wafB 154,865 130,353
Total equity and liabilities mEmREBERE 732,950 692,770

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 154 were £
approved by the Board of Directors on 25th March 2019 and 4 =A
were signed on its behalf.

MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
&= R L9924
Director Director

EF EE

The notes on pages 73 to 155 are an integral part of these S73E156H M T AGZ A M EHRE N EE
consolidated financial statements. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
,f\f%*EEiEE§§E§7§E

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE—FT—)N\FT_A=1—HIUIFE

Other
Share reserves Retained Total
capital (note 21) earnings equity
Hibf& B

BAE (Hizz) RERN MR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TER TR TEx

As at 1st January 2018 RZE—-—NF—H—H 19,896 244,553 297,968 562,417
Comprehensive loss 2MEIBX
Loss for the year REEFEIE - - (1,760) (1,760)
Other comprehensive income/ Hiba @z (EX)

(loss)
Revaluation surplus on land T REFCEGRK

and buildings - 37,304 - 37,304
Deferred tax charged to MR EMREEEERIE

revaluation reserve - (6,515) - (6,515)
Exchange difference arising OREE NI B

from translation of financial R ZIERER

statements of subsidiaries - (13,361) - (13,361)

Total comprehensive income/ AFEEEE2EWZE,
(loss) for the year (B K) - 17,428 (1,760) 15,668

At 31st December 2018 R-ZZE—NEF
+=—HA=+—H 19,896 261,981 296,208 578,085
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
AR BB E (&)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_E—)\F+_A=+—HIFE

Other
Share reserves Retained Total
capital (note 21) earnings equity
H o % 5

e (BraE21)  RERF Mg m
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET THET TAT TAET

As at 1st January 2017 R —+tF—H—H 19,896 201,909 282,665 504,470
Comprehensive income 2E K=
Profit for the year R E Z g = = 19,283 19,283
Other comprehensive income/ Hiha @z (EX)

(loss)
Revaluation surplus on land T REFCEGRK

and buildings = 27,992 = 27,992
Deferred tax charged to MR EMREEEERIE

revaluation reserve - (4,706) - (4,706)
Exchange difference arising OREE NI B

from translation of financial ZRMZIERESR

statements of subsidiaries - 19,358 - 19,358
Total comprehensive income AEFRE2EIK =

for the year - 42,644 19,283 61,927
Dividend paid (note 10) A A% B (BT 5E10) - = (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2017 R-ZE—+tF

+=—RA=+— 19,896 244,553 297,968 562,417

The notes on pages 73 to 155 are an integral part of these S73Z=I16EMNMTEAGZE VB MRMHEESS
consolidated financial statements. 13 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K it FET F& T
Cash flows from operating EETBHNRERE
activities
Net cash generated from operations &8 &E 4 H)F R & 24(a) 2,034 24,103
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/ REB(ZRBH
(paid), net MAF T 58 1,278 (5,432)
Overseas tax paid, net A INF 15 TR R (1,434) (6,060)
Interest paid SR B (1,523) (1,000)
Net cash generated from operating BEEHELENFRS
activities 355 11,611
Cash flows from investing RETHNEERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BMERZRE
equipment (42,580) (4,349)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid &2 (& hn) Xt
for additions of property, plant and ¥ BEEXREBZ
equipment Hi 4 (246)
Interest received W ER 7 B 62 63
Decrease in short-term fixed deposit & 2> 58 Hi & Hi 17 ¢ - 1,112
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEME - HEK&
and equipment JAEFTIE K 24(b) 101 54
Net cash used in investing activites REEEMANFE S (42,413) (3,366)
Cash flows from financing METENEERE
activities
Additions of bank loans iR ITE R 24(c) 40,000 =
Repayment of bank loans EBEFETEXR 24(c) (3,200) (11,875)
Net (repayment)/additions of trust B (BEB),FhiEaik
receipt loans BER 24(c) (12,887) 8,329
Dividend paid to the Company’s DR NNCIE & SE ]
shareholders % 2 - (3,980)

Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFRSHEL,(FTH)
financing activities B FIR© 23,913 (7,526)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

AR REXRGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_E—)\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B it FET FA& T
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HEePREEEY2Z
and cash equivalents FOR D)% (18,145) 719
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzZzHRE&RK
at 1st January REEEY 68,621 67,191
Exchange difference on cash and RekReEEBY2
cash equivalents E N ER (480) 711
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—A=+—-H82
at 31st December ReRREEEY 19 49,996 68,621

The notes on pages 73 to 155 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r e B A R R P A

or the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-_F—-N\F+-HA=+—HIFEF

T

General Information

Perennial International Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of electric cable and wire
products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and
investment properties and certain financial assets
and liabilities (including derivative instruments),
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

—REH

EREEERARN (AR RRELR
AR » ARARKT AR (GBI AEE]
TERENERERERRERER -

AR RBREFMAKAE—RBBERA
Al o HFE M 9 = & & i 4k A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda °

BRRINERI  HELRAMBHRERRAE

25 -
TESHHRERBE

RELEGEAVBEREARABZIEIES
AABRRERTX - BRABBI  WFBR
EMERNAMEFENERER -

21 REEE
REBGRAUTBRRTIIEBEEY
BHREEARE B QR EFE622E
BRER - REWIREBEEL K AT
AR ML EWMERKEY
ERETERMEENABE(BENTE
TR)ze:BRIERARENE -

MANAEBEVBREENNES
MERAFEEBE TARS G
B -ENFEEEEERAALE
SEBRRBIEPITEELAL - R
mENHE SRS EERERNHE
EERBEAMBRRBEARK
FMEENER AN Z4RE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are mandatory
for the financial year beginning on or after 1st
January 2018:

2. FESFHBRRBEGE)

21 RREE(HE)

(a) FAEBEFRERMAVFHINESHBXK
HERIR 2R
BE-T-N\F—-A—Hxkz®&
B 46 7O B1 B JE R Bl 9 3 AT A

EEH R N 2B R R e

Annual Annual Improvements
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
Projects

Amendments to Classification and
HKFRS 2 Measurement

of Share-

Amendments to

Based Payment
Transactions
Applying HKFRS 9

HKFRS 4 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 40

with Customers
Clarifications to HKFRS
15

Transfers of Investment
Property

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency

Transactions
and Advance
Consideration

A
FENEEE —T-NEE
—E-REEH
o 2
ERRBRE UROAERN
B E 2% IRRHH
CHEY DEEHE
ERUBRE EREAMBRE
B E A% EFIRERT
CHEY ARBEETER
LB FARIRR
Al
ERUBRE S@MIA
B E 95
ERUBRE REZFAHOM
Bl 51557 W &=
ERMBRE BEWERS
Bl 1557 Bl 155 K &
CHEN )]
ERCHEN HIREME
F40%
CHEY
BB (BERE  HNEXZRERN
BHRERE  HRE
£89)-
REFE22R

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, there are no other new standards,
amendments to standards or interpretations
that are effective for the first time for this
reporting period that have a material financial
impact on the Group.

B bl BB R ELERE
5 BB 7% W5 ERIE 1555
Sh - BREE b EAT AR - R
ZABRT Akt BN A & M
BREMMA S ANEEEX
EXWHTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9: “Financial Instruments”
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of
HKAS 39 that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities,
derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments from 1st January 2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies
and the new accounting policies are set
out in Note 2.11 below. In accordance
with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 9, the Group applied HKFRS
9 to items that existed at 1st January
2018, comparative figures have not been
restated.

Classifications and measurement

On 1st January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group's
management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial
assets held by the Group and there were
no changes to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of financial
assets that are subject to the new
expected credit loss model of the new
HKFRSs:

= bill receivables
- cash at bank
- trade receivables, and

= other financial assets at amortised
cost.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018

e

—NFEF A=+ —HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAMBmRME

(&

)

For the year ended 31st December 2018

HE—-F

—NFF+ZA=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(a)

(i)

”

HKFRS: 9
(Continued)
Bill receivables and cash at bank

The Group has adopted the expected
credit loss model to assess the
recoverability of bill receivables and cash
at bank as at 1st January 2018 and the
change in impairment methodologies has
no impact of the Group's consolidated
financial information and there is no loss
allowance as at 1st January 2018.

“Financial Instruments

Trade receivables
The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measure expected

credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivable have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The Group applied
different expected loss rates to different
classes of trade receivables, according to
their respective risk characteristics. Trade
receivables are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group has assessed the expected
credit loss model applied to the trade
receivables as at 1st January 2018 and
the change in impairment methodologies
has no significant impact of the Group's
consolidated financial information and the
opening loss allowance is not restated in
this respect.

2. FESHBRRBEGE)

21 HREE(E)
(a) RS FTER A Y 55T M B 45 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

”

HKFRS 9:
(Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

“Financial Instruments

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include other receivables. The Group
has adopted the expected credit loss
model to assess the recoverability of
other receivables as at 1st January
2018 and the change in impairment
methodologies has no impact of the
Group's consolidated financial information
and there is no loss allowance as at 1st
January 2018.

HKFRS 15: “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”

The Group has first time adopted HKFRS
15 from 1st January 2018 which resulted
in changes in accounting policies. The
policies are set out in Note 2.22. In
accordance with the transition provisions
of HKFRS 15, the Group has adopted the
modified retrospective application and no
comparative figures are restated.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new framework
for revenue recognition. This replaces
HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which
covers construction contracts. The new
standard introduces a five-step model to
determine when to recognise revenue
and at what amount. Under the five-
step model, revenue is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred
to a customer and at the amount to
which the entity expects to be entitled.
Depending on the nature of the contracts,
revenue is either recognised over time or
at a point in time.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not
result in any significant impact on the
Group’s financial position and results of
operations based on the current business
model.

AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

TEEHBRRBEGER)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2.
Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)
(b) New and amended standards, interpretations (b) MARFERAFHER - ERAEET

A RBRESEL
£ TERMBHR TR LR
RE-F/\F+-A=1-
) L o B4 S 938 1 S
EEZS ZXV PEEEE

and conceptual framework not yet adopted
Certain new and amended standards,
interpretations and conceptual framework have
been published that are not mandatory for the
financial year ended 31st December 2018 and

have not been early adopted by the Group.

Effective for
accounting period

beginning on or after

RTSIBMH KRR

MEtHEER

Annual Improvements Projects
FEYEER

Amendments to HKAS 19
BB ERE195% (BF]A)

Amendments to HKAS 28
BB ERFE28% (BRI &)

Amendments to HKFRS 9
BB | A ERFINR
(85T A)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28
BERMBREENEI05H K
BB Gt R F285

(1B ETA)
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
B 7% ¥ &5 B 2 AE 422018

HKFRS 16
BB WS A B165
HKFRS 17

BRI E LR FE175

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

5% (BEHERERE
ZE®)- £23%

HKAS 1 (Revised)

EB ST ERE15 (KBAT)

HKAS 8

BB G ERFESH

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BRI B RE LR EIFR
(&AEET)

Annual Improvements 2015 — 2017 Cycle

TE-hEE-T-LHFRANNFENE

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

FEMER]  BRHKEE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

BHERRkaEbErROER

Prepayment Features with Negative
compensation

BEEERBZREERE T

Sale or Contribution of Assets Between
an Investor and its Associate and Joint
Venture

REEHEABLERARGERLEZHNE
ELHEYTE

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

BB ERSER B

Leases

HE

Insurance Contracts

Rz & @

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

FIT 15 750 B 32 &) 1~ B E 14

Presentation of Financial Statements

ENFHERER

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

BHRE A EHRER

Business Combinations

XBaH

1st January 2019
—E-hF—-A—H
1st January 2019
—E-NF—-H—H

1st January 2019
—E-hF—-A—H

1st January 2019
—E-hF—-A—H

To be determined
) 5

1st January 2020
—E-FF—-A—H

1st January 2019
—Z-hF—-A—H
1st January 2021
—FZ—%—A—H
1st January 2019
—Z-h¥—HA—H

1st January 2020
—ET-_TF—-HA—H
1st January 2020
“T-TF—A-A

1st January 2020
—E_ZTF-H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards, interpretations
and conceptual framework not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: “Leases”

Nature of Change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
results in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

Impact
The accounting for lessors will not significantly

change.

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating leases.
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments as
lessee of HK$285,000.

Based on management’s initial assessment,
the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 in the future
will result in an increase in the right-of-
use assets and the lease liabilities, which is
expected to result in an increase in both assets
and liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The adoption will also
front-load the expense recognition in the
consolidated income statement over the period
of the leases, as a result of the combination
of the interest expenses arising from the lease
liabilities and the amortisation of the right-of-
use assets as compared to the rental expenses
under existing standard.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
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2. FESHBHRBEAE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards, interpretations
and conceptual framework not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: “Leases” (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1st January 2019.
The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption. Right-of-use assets for property
leases will be measured on transition as if
the new rules had always been applied. All
other right-of-use assets will be measured at
the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease
expenses).

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS 16, the
directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the financial impact of the adoption
of the above new and amended standards,
interpretations and conceptual framework. The
directors of the Company will adopt the new
and amended standards, interpretations and
conceptual framework when they become
effective.

2. FEETHEBEE)
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2.1

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated,
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred assets. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.

AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
2 E— S Ff A=+ —HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.4 Segment reporting
Operating segments are

chief operating decision-maker.

in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

reported

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and the Group’'s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rate are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income
statement on a net basis within other operating
income (expenses), net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies
The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have

(iii)

a functional

currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each
income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
an average exchange rate (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effects of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses and translated of
the date of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

2.6 Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group, is classified as investment property,
principally comprising leasehold land and buildings.
Land held under operating leases is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.6 Investment property (Continued)

2.7

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external
independent valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of a valuation gain or loss in “other operating
income/(expenses), net”.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Land and Buildings
Land mainly represents the land in Hong
Kong under finance lease. Buildings comprise
factories and offices. Land and buildings are
shown at fair value, based on annual valuations
by an external independent valuer, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment. The
valuations of Hong Kong land and buildings
and Mainland China factories are on an open
market value basis or depreciated replacement
costs basis. Any accumulated depreciation
and impairment at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Property,

plant and equipment

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Land and Buildings (Continued)

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of land under finance lease and
buildings are credited to land and buildings
revaluation reserve in equity, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement, in
which case the increase is credited to the
consolidated income statement to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same
asset are charged against land and building
revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other
decreases are expensed in the consolidated
income statement.

Other property, plant and equipment
Other property, plant and equipment,
comprising leasehold improvements, plant
and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office
equipment, motor vehicles and pleasure boats
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Construction in progress is stated at cost
which comprises construction costs, purchase
costs and other related expenses incurred in
connection with the construction of buildings,
plant and machinery for own use, less provision
for impairment losses, if any. On completion,
construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Property,

plant and equipment

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation

Depreciation on land under finance lease
and buildings is calculated to write off their
valuation less accumulated impairment losses
on a straight-line basis over the unexpired
period of the leases or their estimated useful
lives, whichever is shorter. The principal annual
rates used range from 1.5% to 2.2%.

Other property, plant and equipment except
construction in progress are depreciated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less
accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives on a reducing balance
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

15%-20%
15%-20%
15%-20%
15%-20%
15%-20%
10%

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Pleasure boats

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until they are completed and put into
production ready for their intended use, upon
which they will be transferred to property, plant
and equipment.

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Property,

plant and equipment

(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Others (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are included in the consolidated
income statement and are recognised within
‘other operating expense, net’. Where revalued
assets are sold, the amounts included in land
and building revaluation reserve are transferred
to retained earnings.

2.8 Assets under finance leases/operating
leases

(i)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
respective leased assets are included in the
statement of financial position based on their
nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.8 Assets under finance leases/operating
leases (Continued)
(ii) Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group as lessee has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease's inception at
the fair value at the leased property or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in current and non-current payables. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and
finance costs. The finance cost is charged to
consolidated income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases is depreciated over the
asset's useful life or over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term even if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Group
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease
term.

2.9 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Cost mainly represents consideration paid for
the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period of 45-65
years from the date the respective right was granted.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the land use
rights.
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2. TESHHEBER)
210 kM BEE ZRE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Such impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Financial assets

(i) Classification
From 1st January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement

categories:
° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other

comprehensive income or through profit
or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group
classifies its debt instruments as follows:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement and presented in
other operating income/(expenses), net
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment

The Group has four types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

° Bill receivables
° Cash at bank
° Trade receivables

° Other financial assets at amortised cost

Bill receivables and cash at bank

As at 31st December and 1st January 2018,
most of the bank deposits are deposited with
reputable banks in the PRC, Vietnam and Hong
Kong. Most of the bill receivables are issued
from state-owned banks in the PRC. The credit
quality of cash at bank and bill receivables
has been assessed by reference to external
credit ratings or to historical information about
the counterparty default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at
bank is assessed to be close to zero and no
provision was made as at 31st December and
1st January 2018.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 24 month before 31st December 2018
or 1st January 2018 respectively and
the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period.

For the year ended 31st December 2018
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The existing customers has no historical default
record over recent prior years. Therefore, as at
31st December 2018 and 2017, the directors of
the Group were of the opinion that no provision
for loss allowance was necessary.

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to
make contractual payments for a period greater
than a year past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost are
considered to be low credit risk primarily
because historically they had no history of
default and the debtors had a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. Therefore, as at 31st December
2018 and 2017, the directors of the Group
were of the opinion that no provision for loss
allowance was necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
(v) Accounting policies applied until 31st
December 2017

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following category: loans and
receivables. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected
to be settled more than twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘trade and bill receivables’,
‘other receivables and deposits’ and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ in the consolidated
statement of financial position (notes
2.14 and 2.15).

Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The measurement at initial recognition
did not change an adoption of HKFRS 9,
see description above.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
(v) Accounting policies applied until
December 2017 (Continued)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets

31st

The Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably

estimated.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. T ESHBEBE(H)
Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued) 211 I EE (18)
(v) Accounting policies applied until 31st vy R=Z2-tH&+=-A=+-—H
December 2017 (Continued) AEANETHEGE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) B BEEWE (&)

(Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that
there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
The amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’'s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price. If,
in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual
items on the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived
at as follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and
shipping cost.

(i) Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

(i) Finished goods purchased for resale — invoiced
price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measure them subsequently at amortised
cost using effective interest method. See Note 18 for
further information about the Group's accounting for
trade receivables and Note 2.11 (iv) for a description
of the Group's impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. The fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the financial period
in which they are incurred.

2.19 Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is
recognised as a liability and an expense when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus
plan are expected to be settled within twelve
months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates
contribution schemes.

several defined

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For Hong Kong employees, the Group
contributes to Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") scheme in accordance with Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions to the MPF scheme
by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ remuneration
received. The Group's contributions to MPF
scheme are expensed as incurred. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme managed by the local municipal
government in Mainland China. The Group's
contributions to the retirement scheme are
expensed as incurred while the local municipal
government in Mainland China undertakes to
assume that the retirement benefit obligations
of the qualified employees in Mainland China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’'s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property will
be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.20Current and deferred

income tax

(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intend
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the obligation present at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

2.22Revenue recoghnition

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when control of the
products has transferred to the customers
at a point in time, being when the products
are delivered to the customer, the customer
has full discretion over the channel and
price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’'s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.22Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods (Continued)

As receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment
is due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Operating lease rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

2.23Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

2.24 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

TEERRBEGER)

2.2 Z R (&)
(i) HESZE
FEW R TE N E BT RER
B A ULt 0 1R (B 2 5 1 1 Y B
2 REMZREISHATEE
B E o

(i) FBEA
M BUAGE A ERF REIZ
6 LE P B R AR

(iii) KREFEHS WA
EERERS WA REERIE
HEEERER -

2.23TkE KRB

[A) A8 2 A) B R 20 IR B9 BB R B
ARABRAEE(REE)HER
HEARMBREAINSEE -

2.24 B FF % By
T T 768 BE A 40 A TR M AR B IS BUiS
WA REMBARE®E A AN
BIREE  BAEREHRARER
FEER o



1 04 Perennial International Limited 12 %8 £ @ AR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RAMBmRME

(&)

For the year ended 31st December 2018

BE-F—-NF+=

A=1—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The

of financial

Group’s activities expose
risks: market risk

it to a variety
(including foreign

exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall

risk

management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB"), Vietnamese
dong (“VND"”) and United States Dollar
("US$"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations. In addition, the
conversion of RMB and VND are subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by Mainland China
monetary authority and Vietnam government
respectively.

The Group will use any hedging arrangement,
if necessary, to hedge its exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

Should RMB strengthened/weakened by
5% (2017: 5%) during the year ended 31st
December 2018 against the HKS, with all other
variables held constant, the impact of the loss
after taxation and the equity for the year would
have been approximately HK$60,000 lower/
higher (2017: profit after taxation would have
been approximately HK$14,000 higher/lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses.

Should VND strengthened/weakened by
5% (2017: 5%) during the year ended 31st
December 2018 against the US$, with all other
variables held constant, the impact of the loss
after taxation and the equity for the year would
have been approximately HK$66,000 lower/
higher (2017: profit after taxation would have
been approximately HK$62,000 higher/lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Certain of the assets of the Group are
denominated in USD but the foreign exchange
risk is considered not significant as HK$
exchange rate is pegged to USD.

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than RMB, VND and USD are insignificant to
the Group.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the
market price of major raw materials such as
copper rods and chemicals to make plastic
resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised price
gains and losses on raw materials to certain
customers through price adjustments, which
can mitigate the price risk. The Group has not
used any derivative instruments to hedge such
economic exposures.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Details of the Group's
borrowings have been disclosed in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not used any hedging
arrangement to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects
on the Group's profit after taxation for the
year as a result of changes in interest expense
on floating rate borrowings. The sensitivity to
interest rate used is based on market forecasts
available at the reporting date and under the
economic environments in which the Group
operates, with other variables held constant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

3. Financial

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the analysis performed, the impact
on the (loss)/profit after taxation of a 100
basis-point increase/decrease in interest rate
would be a increase/decrease of HK$514,000
and a decrease/increase of HK$314,000 for the
years ended 31st December 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables.

Risk management
Credit ask is managed on a group basis.

For banks and financial institutions, only
independently rated parties with acceptable
rating quality is accepted.

Risk control assesses the credit quality of
the customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings in accordance with limits
set by the Group. The compliance with credit
limits by customers is regularly monitored by
the Group.

The Group has policies in place to ensure sales
are made to customers with appropriate credit
terms and the Group performs periodic credit
check with reference to credit rating performed
by external agents.

3.

B %% B b B 2 (R
&1 % M B8 B 3 (4)

3.1

(iii)

(iv)

=@k (8])

BESN HE2E_ZE—\Kk=
E—+F+-_A=+—HIEtF
fE 100K %2 TR
R GREE (EBE),/ 552
525 Bl 8 4 514,000

2 5 3
75 70 KR 1 314,000
ﬁ: °
EERR

FERBRERE LR EE
Y BEEZERAERER H
il & W BR 3K B BB P RO
EERR - BHEARKDEKR

e
AN

AREE
VI ESTS R

RIRITREMBEBMS - A&
XEBIUNESEANERZIR
BEEOAL -

REEHFEEPHNEREE
= EREEEBMBML B
ERBMHEMEAR o fARR
RERBEAEEAERORIER
NEE SN BB RE AR SE - AN E
EHRERTPETEREREN
I o

AEBEDE BB RIARREKEE
TEBEENERERATP
B - AR E2E5 i E
ETHEEFRETENE

s -



3. Financial

Annual Report 2018 £ i 1 07

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales made to the top 5 customers amounted
to approximately HK$234,851,000 (2017:
HK$241,565,000), representing 66% (2017:
66%) of total revenue for the year. The total
accounts receivable balance of these top 5
customers as at 31st December 2018 was
HK$67,542,000 (2017: HK$58,597,000).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has adopted the expected credit
loss model to assess the recoverability of trade
receivables. Details of the accounting policy
for impairment of trade receivables has been
disclosed in note 2.11(v)(iii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

3. Financial

Risk Management

(Continued)

(v)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies

maintaining sufficient cash and making
available an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities with staggered maturities to
reduce refinancing risk in any year and to
fund working capital, debt servicing, dividend
payments, new investments and close out
market positions if required. The Group
maintains significant flexibility to respond to
opportunities and events by ensuring that
committed credit lines are available. As at 31st
December 2018, the Group had available trade
and loan finance facilities of HK$206,000,000
of which HK$61,534,000 was utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting
is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
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3. Financial Risk Management 3.
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, maintain a strong credit
rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the
business and to enhance shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. The Group's capital management
objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the years ended 31st December 2018 and
2017.

Except for the compliance of certain financial
covenants for maintaining the Group's banking
facilities and borrowings and loans, the Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. The Group complied with the financial
covenants attached to borrowings and loans as at
31st December 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing total
borrowings to total equity.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2018 and 2017
were as follows:
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HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Total borrowings BIEE 61,534 37,621
Total equity #AHE 578,085 562,417
Gearing ratio R s 10.6% 6.7%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018

HE—-F

3. Financial

—NFF+ZA=+—HIFE

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bill receivables, other receivables and
deposits, trade and bill payables, other payables and
accruals and short-term borrowings approximate to
their fair values due to their short-term maturities.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments, unless the discounting effect is
insignificant.

See notes 16 and 15 for disclosures of the
investment properties and property, plant and
equipment that are measured at fair value and
classified by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy at 31st December 2018 and
2017:

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level
2).

3, Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets and liabilities is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

3.

Bt 7% L B B ()

A REME
AEEVBEERMBEENIRE
EREReRBEEY  EKE
%H\}E/T))\&TTF Ei\’rlﬁﬁguﬂlmlg)}n—f
e ENEBESIRZREER  HiE
NHEBEREFHIREHER B
HESH RHNEEQADEED -
RERBERGE 2V BARNAAE
RAEEARHEUSE T HEARK
MGAERBERRENTR M EIE
et BRIFHMBTZEDTK -

RZE—NEFER_F—

=t+—H RARBEFEZREY

ENETHNARBEFENSERE R

ﬁ%“@Z%% BB N 7% i 2 B
T Bm2EWE16R15:

+tF+-H

1. %lJﬁﬁE%E&‘ﬁ%EMHWEFi
BEZOREARE)REGE
&) e

2. BEREFE-HOBEIN &
ABBHYE & (BER) LHEE
(HERTE)ERABERETS
iR 2 EERM(E =R -

3. XBERBEBEZHBEIIIEER
AERMEEE GEEREE)
(B=8) -

EEABEMBEENTRT
Tﬁﬁﬁ“‘“iﬁiﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁm
Z’SE@ﬁFﬁmi\lﬂé
E’Jm BREBERERERE
El\i@ZfM’fﬁ & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Risk Management

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

Bt ¥ L B B 1R (4

3.3 AnEME (&)
&ﬁﬁé%maffmiﬂlﬂm
AREMBHEERMEE - ZF G
ERTEENBAISEDSHE (N
B) BEVKBEIENEEMA
M E—HERMITEANRAEBEMSE
MATEEABASAEBREIUE A
ZERMTAINAE R -

i —HKZIHE K& AL IERIEA
BEMSEE  MZERTAIA
F=8 -

4. BARESEHERHE

MEMAG ST EFE - LRBBE
RBEMEMRARETIE BEREEH
ERTHEHRKEMHAEHTRA -

15””ﬂMF”1*uﬁﬁWF°

111
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

4. Critical

Accounting Estimates and

Judgements (Continued)

41

4.2

4.3

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimated fair value of properties

The fair values of investment properties, land and
buildings are determined at the end of each reporting
period by an independent professional valuer. The
fair value of investment properties is determined
on an open market value basis by reference to
comparable market transactions. The fair values of
land and buildings are determined on an open market
value basis or depreciated replacement cost basis.
These methodologies are based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions as to income
and expenses of the property and future economic
conditions.

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rate. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

4. BB EHERHEE)

4.1

4.2

4.3

Bi 18

AEETEESERARERAR
BIE - EEESEVBERBER &
EELEAHE -TENBEDE
ENENABERY - ELBXRHB
B HFERHRAENRKRET
ETHEEN AKEREBMEFED
AR K - B TR B IR AR
BfE - ERBOBRERERKIR
REBTRE AEZRARTEE
TE F E 89 BT 15 78 MUE JE 7 X B o

EETMRDRE

BREME THEEFHRILERN
BERESHERAB —BLEEM
BEORE - REMENARELZE
AL EMISRIHARMISER -
THEBFOAABHARATSE
REFTEREEXATERTE ° KA
EIDETRIBE R KGR B FH A —
Z 5B E B AR 2 R 5 3R
RBEBRMIELRR

s

EWEZKEMRRZREE
]
AEEREBEREZORERMERE
BENBER LENEZHRARE
il FE WX BR OB B (E L B - AR E
FHZERE K EREFTENE
ABER REASEBERLE -
W% 8 B R B9 3R 1T R B B AE 1
it & 62 P 1 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and 4. BE#EE:H{HE R ¥ (&)

Judgements (Continued)

4.4 Provision for inventories
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment
of the net realisable value of its inventory, which is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors
such as the age of the inventory items and the
assessment of the results of the subsequent sales
performance of the items. Management reassess the
provision at the end of the reporting period.

4.5 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment
The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

44 FERE
R 1715 2 0] 9 35 % (E B8 1B
EAHE B X PGS EE
BEBHERSEREESL - B
ERHEE  TREZEETIEE
MFETEE 7 BE#e R I8 B % &5
ERESHG . TEBRBSEK
G ST (B o

45 Y%K BMERRE2EETAE
A 1
AEBEEEEEENE BEAR
1 2 {51 A 62 P 4 2 K2 48 B8 3 & 7
X WEADEREAABAUME
g zM%x BERKEZER
AERFHZELER  AIERK
MEHFMELBERAEY - EEE
53 03T B B ST - e AI R A HAE
R Z A G 52 B 0 S I 8E S
EE%E@Z&%ZZ@%Q&F%%%
= o

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. W#m= ko HER
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing AEFFEREHUEREEERRER
and trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue EmER FABRzZBEOT:
recognised during the year is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sale of goods — at a point in time 45 — 7£ X & b5 5 25 355,744 364,401

The Chief Executive Officer (the chief operation decision
maker) has reviewed the Group’s internal reporting and
determines that there are five reportable segments, based
on location of customers under the electric cable and wire
products business, including Hong Kong, Mainland China,
America, Europe and Other countries. These segments are
managed separately as each segment is subject to risks
and returns that are different from others.

THES(BEREEARE)CHELASE
NBBRELEEEERLERERER
TRETFPMEHERLBALN  BFEF
B mEKRE - EM - BONEREMER -
&M@ A= D 5 IR E H E kA E &R 2
BRIREAM D B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. W#H K 2 &R (&)

(Continued)
The segment information for the reportable segments for ZE)N\EFRZE—tEERED DI
2018 and 2017 are as follows: BRI :
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure Depreciation Amortisation
W =
(5h 3088 &) DEEE HOIWEE ERAMEREX il e
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F ZE-N\F —E-N\F —E-N\F —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT TERT FET FTET TERT FTERT
Hong Kong BB 113,641 3,503 205,796 147 5,255 -
Mainland China R K e 50,246 1,390 314,697 3,579 10,176 585
America EM 182,475 (1,397) 89,071 - - -
Europe &M 710 (20) 159 - - -
Other countries H o Bl R 8,672 (234) 64,105 42,429 - 130
Reportable segment & 5 & 355,744 3,242 673,828 46,155 15,431 715

Unallocated costs RAAOBRER (1,516)

Operating profit £ 5 F 1,726
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE—FE—N\F+-A=Z+—HIFE

Wz & 2 BE R ()

Revenue and Segment Information 5.

(Continued)
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure  Depreciation ~ Amortisation
Iy =
(SNEBEHE) DEEE BOBEE AR e % 8
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
—FB—tF —F—tF —FT—tF "—FT—tF —FT—tF _—FT—+#F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FAET FAET FHET F& T F& T
Hong Kong &% 118,242 12,405 202,217 642 4,562 -
Mainland China B A B 53,061 5,641 316,638 5,649 9,610 579
America E) 181,796 9,199 87,001 = = =
Europe BN 895 39 109 - - -
Other countries H B R 10,407 460 29,913 = = 130
Reportable segment ¥} & 7 &0 364,401 27,744 635,878 6,291 14,172 709
Unallocated costs RAHOBEA (1,283)
Operating profit £ 5 F 26,461
A reconciliation of total segment assets to the Group's BOMEEHEEREEMNER -
total assets.
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total segment assets myEEE 673,828 635,878
Investment properties "wEME 55,290 52,150
Deferred tax assets REF I A E 3,832 4,742
Total assets BMEE 732,950 692,770
Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. FoBEBRRERAAITH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. W#H K 2 &R (&)

(Continued)
Revenue of approximately HK$158,635,000 (2017: I 2§ #9158,635,00078 T(— T — + & :
HK$152,477,000) are derived from two (2017: two) major 152,477,000 70) R REMEA(ZF — &
customers contributing 10% or more of the total revenue. F MEETEXFEM B K Z10% 3K A
These revenues are attributable to the America segment £ ZBERBZREENDB(ZE—1LF:
(2017: America segment). FEMN 5 EB) e
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FH& T
Customer A =EA 88,106 85,401
Customer B %FB 70,529 67,076
158,635 152,477
6. Other Income 6. HttWzm
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FE T
Scrap sales &R 8H & 4,286 3,747
Interest income FE WA 62 63
Rental income from investment REREMEZHS WA
properties 1,291 1,253
Government subsidy X 78 b 360 1,683
Compensation and storage income HBF@#E&EF WA
from customers 765 605
Other income from customers HEfE PR A 364 812

7128 8,163
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. Operating Profit 7. REHEF
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the Z“‘ ERFMBMBRGEA) THEE:
following:

2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amortisation and depreciation: B R ITE
Amortisation of land use rights 4 {5 PR R 8 715 709
Depreciation of property, M BEREETE
plant and equipment 15,431 14,172
Auditor’s remuneration % SEM BY
- Audit services - ®FtEE 1,525 1,460
- Non-audit services - FEFIEE 764 2,034
Cost of inventories =N 206,704 189,857
Net exchange losses SN B K 1,092 1,484
Operating lease rentals in respect ITHEEFILKERERS
of land and buildings 438 435
Operating lease rentals in respect MARBoEEHERS
of office equipment 339 392
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - MELXEEE
and equipment 31 959
Direct expenses for investment REMERGZEEKLE
properties X 129 127
Gain on revaluation of investment KEMFEMEERRSF
properties (3,140) (5,160)
Revaluation (surplus)/deficit of BFEH(BH)BX
buildings (1,738) 3,160
Provision for/(reversal of provision iR GHREEE)ES R
for) returns and loss allowance B 1B B e 100 (91)
Provision for slow-moving BRTFERE
inventories 298 855
Staff costs (including directors’ BEINA(BIEESHE)
emoluments) (note 12) (Bt 5E12) 98,252 97,531
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

8. Finance Costs 8. HMKEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest expenses AEZH 1,523 1,000
Amount capitalised (Note) ERbe ) (419) -
Net finance cost B E AR 1,104 1,000
Note: M5 -
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing ErTE2IRNERNERKNEASBEMAZ
costs to be capitalised in construction in progress is the weighted BEREEAFRNERBERER 2 NMETAF
average interest rate applicable to the entity's borrowing during X B315% (ZE—+tF 8E) -
the year of 3.15% (2017: nil).
9. Taxation 9. BiIE

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax provided at the two-tiered rate
of 8.256% for the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits for one of the Group’s Hong Kong
subsidiaries for the year and 16.5% on the remaining
estimated assessable profits for the year (2017:
standard rate at 16.5%).

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
the applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

The subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam
during the vyear is subject to corporate income
tax at a rate of 20%. In accordance with the
applicable tax regulations, the subsidiary is subject
to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive
years, commencing from the first year of making
revenue. In addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full
exemption from corporate income tax for the first
four years from the earlier of (i) the year when profit
is generated for the first time or (ii) the fourth year
of commencing operations; and a 50% reduction in
corporate income tax for the next nine years. The
Vietnam subsidiary of the Group does not have any
taxable profit for the year ended 31st December
2018.

(a) FAANEBHDRAEEETEWE
NEZ—MEEMATRERRR 2 HH
2,000,000/ 7T bA8.25% * M F E 1h
SHE R R F 62 55 LA16.5% (—F —
+ F IZE T K16.5%) Y W AR 7
RIEMBEE o

BINEANNHBDRBEARE LKL
PREMBLEERBMEMRHE - LF
B Et BRB G METE -

REBRIELNNE QR AR
200 R EHMMEXAER - RIB
ERBBEER  ZWEBRABEEL
WABFEEBETAFREEHRE
10% @ - M I - B () E £ B R
W AN B Bk () B AR WA B9 36 0 4R (3%
BREEAB)EABEEFAR %M
BRARAERTHARELBMEEME
B RERNLFRAZHEONER
R E  BE-_FT—N\Ft+=
A=+—HLEFE AEEHNHBFE
M8 A m B AL A ERB R A -
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

9. Taxation (Continued) 9. FHIE(E)

(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)
The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the ne/ Gt GEeEZzR 2R E
consolidated income statement represents: =t
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHETT
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH 265 1,040
Overseas taxation 8 IR IE 3,084 3,138
(Over-provision)/under-provision 4 Bi (8 %8 # &)
in prior year BHETE (317) 551
Deferred tax relating to the Tih=E2MNEEREDRDZ
origination and reversal of iR FE % 78 (B 5E9(b))
temporary differences
(note 9(b)) (650) 1,454
2,382 6,178

AN 52 B 7 R B B A i A 2 B TR AR
BREABEEMNEREMAE ZE R

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the profits tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: HEzEZEZ0T :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Profit before taxation R 5 A v A 622 25,461
Calculated at a taxation rate of & *16.5% (ZT—+4F :

16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5t & 2 B 1A 103 4,201
Effect of different taxation rates [A & R 2 &£ 1,414 1,349
Income not subject to taxation 7B Z W A (2,619) (1,771)
Expenses not deductible for A 2 Z H

taxation purposes 3,783 1,975
(Over-provision)/under-provision £ B (FAZE & f5)

in prior year SR (317) 551
Utilisation of previously £ FA S AT R BE 3R

unrecognised tax losses i 7% B 18 (30) (131)
Tax losses for which no deferred 7k #& 32 iE #E % 18 ~

tax asset was recognised T 15 E5 18 48 4
Taxation charge TR BR 2,382 6,178
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

9. Taxation (Continued) 9. HIE(E)
(b) The movement on the net deferred tax liabilities (b) EEHBEBEGBRBFENEHNT :

account is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
At 1st January Rn—HA—H 34,350 28,190
Deferred tax (credited)/charged (5t A) KR AERERZ
to the consolidated income iE JE B 38 (M 3£ 9(a)
statement (note 9(a)) (650) 1,454
Deferred tax charged to MR EGHRFEEZ
revaluation reserve IR IE 7 IR 6,515 4,706
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H”H 40,215 34,350
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities EREZEREER —HEEERAK
and assets, without taking into consideration HHEE BELEMBABEREESZD
the offsetting of balances within the same tax (N
jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EZEBEBEER
Tax depreciation Revaluation surplus Provisions and others Total
BIENE R BEREM M
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“E-N\FE —Z—t% ZF-N\F —ZT-tH& ZZ2-N\F —T-tHF ZF-N\F _FT—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FEx FET T FHT FEx FET FEx FET
At 1st January w—A—A8 1,562 1,750 41,927 37,221 1,058 1,515 44,547 40,486
Charged/(credited) to ARG BERP
the consolidated mer (Gt A)
income statement (301) (188) - - 3 (457) (298) (645)
Deferred tax charged to B E & 2
revaluation reserve EER A - - 6,515 4,706 - = 6,515 4,706
At 31st December ®R+=A=+—-8 1,261 1,562 48,442 41,927 1,061 1,058 50,764 44,547
Set-off of deferred tax 1R & 4K &4 16 SUIK 84
liabilities pursuant to ELEHEERE
set-off provision (6,717) (5,455)

44,047 39,092




9. Taxation (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
Deferred tax assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

9. BIE(E)

(b) (&)
EEHEEE
Tax depreciation Provisions and others Tax losses Total
BIERE BERHEM EE:0) 3 B
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“®-N\F -F-tf -B-N\F -F-tF -B-\F -F-t% -B-\F T tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

THRE FHT FHE TH FHRE TH THRE FHT
At 1st January w—A—8 4,273 4175 4,654 5,961 1,270 2,160 10,197 12,296
Credited/(charged) to BFEAaBEaRT
the consolidated AR
income statement 683 98 (460) (1,307) 129 (890) 352 (2,099)
At 31st December wn+-—A=+—8 4,956 4,273 4,194 4,654 1,399 1,270 10,549 10,197
Set-off of deferred tax 1R 5 4% &4 16 SR 84
liabilities pursuant to BRIEREEE
set-off provision (6,717) (5,455)
3,832 4,742
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss HOUENBERERAELEHIEE
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of ENHE REREARIUEELEDN
the related tax benefit through future taxable profits AREFB aFMEROMBER
is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred BHmmER o NEEIWEATLE
tax assets of HK$525,000 (2017: HK$507,000) in B8 DA 4K BH R 2R FE AR B UK 2= B B IR
respect of losses amounting to HK$5,064,000 (2017: &5 185,064,000 L (Z & — £ F :
HK$3,553,000) that can be carried forward against 3,553,000 7t) lERIEE L IE & &
future taxable income. As at 31st December 2018, 525,000 7t (== — -+ 4 : 507,000
tax losses for which no deferred tax assets were BIL)  RZE—NFF+ZA=4—
recognised amounting to HK$1,880,000 (2017: Nil) H - 1,880,000/ JT #) 7% 7 58 i L 1%
will expire in 5 years, and the remaining tax losses of HEEZERMBE(ZE— L5
HK$3,184,000 (2017: HK$3,553,000) has no expiry E)BRAFTANEE  URBTZH
date. & 183,184,0008 T (=T —+F:
3,653,000 )W | EHA R -
Deferred tax liabilities of HK$4,425,000 (2017: REEY R ETHEBRFHARE
HK$4,592,000) have not been recognised for the BAFMABTFINOERAGHRME
withholding tax and other taxes that would be fth 5% 18 7 7R 3 AE 74 18 & 184,425,000
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain B (= T — £ F:4,592,000%
subsidiaries. Such amounts are permanently TL) o WERERZBF S HERAM
reinvested. Unremitted earnings totalled "E - RZTE—N\FF+_A=+—H
HK$44,245,000 at 31st December 2018 (2017: B oK & 3R & F & 344,245,000 7T

HK$45,919,000).

— T —+ 4% :45,919,000/ ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_E—)\F+_A=+—HIFE

10.

1.

12.

Dividend 10. IR &
The dividends paid in 2017 was HK$3,980,000 (HK$0.02 —E-FEMARE R3,980,000% T (&
per share). At a meeting held on 25th March 2019, the f80.02%87T) - RZE—NF=A=+HA
Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend BITHWAEL  ESeTERREE=ZT
for the year ended 31st December 2018. —N\F+ZA=+—HILFEIRMSREAR
B o
(Loss)/earnings Per Share "N 2R(EE) BF
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is BRERNER) BFDIREFAZAE
based on the Group's loss for the year of HK$1,760,000 & B AFEE E 1,760,000 T (2 —+
(2017: profit for the year of HK$19,283,000) divided by F  F N A19,283,0008 ) RIRFAE
the weighted average number of 198,958,000 (2017: 1T L AR 2 0 5 £0198,958,000 A%
198,958,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year. —Z — % :198,958,000%) 5t & -
In both 2018 and 2017, diluted (loss)/earnings per share RZZE-N\FERZZE—LFE  BR®
is the same as basic (loss)/earnings per share due to the LHERIFEEEBEEHELRANK  WERKR
absence of dilutive potential ordinary shares during the e (5E) /BN EEEARER (&E),/
reporting period. BAAEE e
Staff Costs (Including Directors’ 12. ETR X (BIEEEMH L)
Emoluments)
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FA& T
Wages, salaries and fringe benefits L& - & M k& 58 92 B 91,942 91,228
Social security costs 2R BE R A 5,497 5,605
Pension costs — contribution to RN AN — 58 18 © 51 &
MPF scheme fEH 2 5K 450 436
Others H A 363 262

98,252 97,531
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors
and Key Management

(a)

Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31st December 2018 is set out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s
services as a director or other services in connection
with the management of the affairs, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE—FE—N\F+-A=Z+—HIFE

1B.EERFTEEBAEZERN

K HE 5
(a) EEZHHM

BE-ZT—\F+-A=t+—AL*F
B SRESOHFHMET:

ENHEARZEMNBEXESRN
RHUHEBEEREEHEEBORSE 2
ATZHMEHEBKMESMT

Discretionary Other
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total
EENE we e MERe  HbE (i R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FERT FTHERT FHET FTHERT
MON Chung Hung (iii) - 4,560 45 185 4,790
i B 2 (i)
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 18 179 1,517
R R
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 672 50 86 808
R B A
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 355 5 18 378
hIERE
MON Tiffany - 514 22 356 892
=mENR
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - 180
24 B ()
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - 84
FRE ()
CHUNG Kit Ying (i) 120 - - - 120

BIRE ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_E—)\F+_A=+—HIFE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors

and Key Management (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31st December 2017 is set out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s
services as a director or other services in connection
with the management of the affairs, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

1B.EERFTEEBAEZERN

K& s (48)

EEHM(E)

HE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—H1t
FE G SREFNHFHOT:

ENHEARZEMNBEXESRN
RHUHHEGEEREEHEEBAORE 2
ATZHMEHERKMESMT

Discretionary Other
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total
= e e MiERe E At 48 A (ii) K]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET FE T FE& T FE T
MON Chung Hung (iii) - 4,560 629 175 5,364
i B 2 (i)
KOO Di An, Louise = 1,320 252 1556 1,727
B8 1 &
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 654 3 89 746
7 B K
MON Wai Ki, Vicky = 346 18 17 381
hIERE
MON Tiffany = 486 99 345 930
=ER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - 180
24 B ()
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 = = = 84
FRE ()
MA Chun Hon, Richard (i) 67 = = = 67
BHEIEZE ()
CHUNG Kit Ying (i) 1 - - - 1
R (i)
(i)  Independent non-executive directors () BUFERITES

(i)  Other benefits include commission, insurance
premium and MPF scheme contribution.

(iii)  Chief Executive Officer

During the year, no emolument paid or receivable
in respect of a person accepting office as a director
(2017: nil) and no director waived any emoluments
(2017: nil) or compensation for loss of office (2017:
nil).

(i) HMEMNemRHEERE - KR
HRRBES 2K -

(i) 17 ER4 #

REANEERIZERL BRI
FE W BN £ (2017F - B)UAMRBEE
EWEM D (20175 « 8) BB

B g (201746 : &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Interests of Directors

and Key Management (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31st December 2018, the
Group did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31st December 2018, there is
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled body
corporates and connected entities of such directors
(2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company's business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2017: Nil).

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018

e

—NFF+ZA=+—HILFE

1B.EERFTEEBAEZERN

R ()

(b) EENENKREF
FAN - BIEE SR T EBCGRR
BRA(ZE—EF 8-

(c) EENARLER

(d)

(e)

(f)

FAOBMEESEINRBRAL
EERBEMNCE—LF 8)-

BRBEEBEREMEE=FE
HEHE

RE-F - \F+-A=+—AL%T
& - AR E R A 9 EE F RS
MM E= RS E(CF— L
=) -

>3

s % o
=
=
ilﬁl:

¥

|
=
_m
i
m
i
5 |
+ 10
|_—|_
_H:r

W B it B O
- I

3
ot

>
N
o2
ﬁ
4 0

o
ok i 58 08

\
/
N
/)

ESERS  ZHEIERANE
RS

A AR E EB T AREER
Ep—p BARRAEERER (TR
BEERRIE) BH B A = (RAE
FIER N FREFMBSE)0EAR
5 RERAN(CT—LF |-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors 13. EERFTEEE AEZREF

and Key Management (Continued) Kz (&)
(g) Five highest paid individuals () ENESHFMAL
In 2018 and 2017, the five individuals whose RZEBE-—NEFER-_ZT—+tF A
emoluments were the highest in the Group included AEEEeETMATBEE=(U(=ZZ
three (2017: three) directors whose emoluments —tF =) EF ZUEFE
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The SEHREXDT - ANEEZNT
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2017: EHRWU(ZE—tF M) AL
two) individuals during the year are as follows: SO BN
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA& T
Basic salaries, other allowances and E A% & - H 28K
benefits in kind EY RS 1,849 2,088
Discretionary bonuses 15 18 & 686 625
Pension costs — contribution to MPF  RIKA AN — BiE S 512l
scheme fE 2 3K 32 36
2,567 2,749
The emoluments fell within the following bands: EMESETY & E :
Number of individuals
AB®E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Nil = HK$1,000,000 0/ 7C%1,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T &
1,500,000/ T - -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T &

2,000,000% 7t 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018

BE-_F—\F+-A=+—HIFE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors 13. EERFTEEE AEZREF

and Key Management (Continued) M= (&)
(h) Key management compensation (h) EEEEAE 2 FH N

Key management includes all directors presented
above and five (2017: three) senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management

TEEEABREMEEERAM
2t F =) EMREEBAR -
MEZEEABXNIEREERE

for employee services is shown below: WEMNKENB ST :
2018 2017
—E-N\E TE—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Basic salaries, other allowances and EA¥ 4 - H# 2AE &
benefits in kind B & 11,354 10,696
Discretionary bonuses M58 e 835 1,672
Pension costs — contribution to MPF iR {RKpk X — & f& £ 51 2
scheme E 2 3K 117 107
12,306 12,475
The emoluments of senior management (excluding SREBABZHE (TEREES)
directors) are within the following bands: ETHEE:
Number of individuals
AEEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
Nil = HK$1,000,000 0/87C%1,000,0007% 7T 4 2

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

1,000,001 7T &

1,500,000 JT - =
1,500,001 T &

2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

14. Land Use Rights 14. + ithfF A&
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid AEEz THFEAEIIERENKEHE
operating lease payments and their net book values are HIERAEEFESTEAT

analysed as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
At 1st January n—H—H 28,470 28,289
Amortisation 8 (715) (709)
Exchange adjustment i 2 3 & (1,059) 890
At 31st December R+—A=+—8” 26,696 28,470
15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. 1% - WERZE
Land and buildings
(notes fa) to (c))
1HEET Furniture Construction
(M EZ«) Leasehold  Plant and and Office Motor  Pleasure in progress
InHK Outside HK improvements ~ machinery fixtures equipment  vehicles boats (note (e)) Total
ERIR
i 38 %6 HBEREE GAREE BOZERG RE i 4 (B (e)) a5
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn iR iR
Net book value at WZ2-\§-A-Hz
1st January 2018 REFE 125,870 192,998 2,932 10,927 729 4,506 2,994 4,684 15 345,655
Additions NE - - - 4,882 - 453 842 45 39,933 46,155
Disposals e - - - - - (1) (131) - - (132)
Depreciation g (4,267) (6,325) (648) (2,606) (18) (547) (570 (450 - (15,431)
Revaluation Eff 17461 21575 - - - - - - - 39,042
Exchange adjustment Exge - (11,065) (91) (757) (3) (126) 41) - (1139)  (13,222)
Net book value at RZ2-/\F
31st December 2018 TZA=t-HZ
REFE 139,070 197,183 2,193 12,446 708 4,285 3,094 4,219 38,809 402,067
At 31st December 2018 RI2-)\E
+ZA=t-H
At cost KA - - 12,345 88,545 5,079 14,166 7120 14,421 38,809 180,485
At valuation - 2018 fiE-ZZ-N\F 139,070 197,183 - - - - - - - 336,253
Accumulated depreciation 2BNE - - (10,152) (76,099) (4.31) (9,881) (4,026) (10,142) - (14,67)

Net book value BEFE 139,070 197,183 2,193 12,446 708 4,285 3,094 4,219 38,809 402,067
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE—FE—N\F+-A=Z+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥ ¥ - BENRE (E)
(Continued)

Land and buildings

(notes fa) to (c))
T REF Furniture Construction
(@ Z () Leasehold  Plant and and Office Motor ~ Pleasure  in progress
In HK Qutside HK  improvements ~ machinery  fixtures equipment  vehicles boats (note (e)) Total
EEIR
it &5 %t BERBE GHRXE #LFRE "E BE (Kte) k]

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR  TER TR TEn TEn TR TEx TRz TEnr  TER

Net book value at RIZE-+E-HA-8H
1st January 2017 ZEAFE 107,350 147,375 2,579 11,268 745 4,528 2,844 5,359 32,536 314,584
Additions AE - - 667 2,074 - 364 732 - 2,454 6,291
Disposals e = = = (774) - (1) (69) (169) = (1,013)
Depreciation Vil (3,520) (5,551) (623) (2,827) (21) (571) (553) (506) - (14172)
Transfer #Y = 34,816 159 - = = = = (34,975) -
Revaluation 2 22,040 2,792 = = = = = = - 24832
Exchange adjustment ExHE = 13,566 150 1,186 5 186 40 - - 15,133
Net book value at il 3
31st December 2017 TZA=+-H2
REFE 125,870 192,998 2,932 10,927 729 4,506 2,994 4,684 15 345,655
At 31st December 2017 i S 3
+=B=t+-H
At cost B - - 12,756 85,734 5,253 14,097 6,714 14,376 15 138,945
At valuation - 2017 BE--F—+F 125,870 192,998 = = = = = = - 318,868
Accumulated depreciation 2B E = = (9,824) (74,807) (4,524) (9,591) (37200 (9,692) - (112,158)

Net book value EEFE 125,870 192,998 2,932 10,927 729 4,506 2,994 4,684 15 345,655
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_E—)\F+_A=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(@) Land and buildings in Hong Kong and Mainland
China were revalued on the basis of open market
value by direct comparison approach and depreciated
replacement cost approach, respectively, by
Centaline Surveyors Limited, an independent firm
of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December 2018
and 2017. The following tables analyses the land
and buildings carried at fair value, by valuation
techniques.

Fair value hierarchy

15. % - BMERKRHE (F)

(a WZE—NFER_ZT—tF+=-A=
+—H UREBRPERRENL
i K2 4 T B 98 S F E (H (B A RO
EMTERARDRZARAMEZ
AEFRAERLEBERNMEEEK
AR E o TR EF B G E
DR AARBEARN LM REF -

DRRERER

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2018 using
—E-N\FE+ZA=+-HEAUT

WAWAAEBETE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEEEE ERANHEM BEXMH
Description it EERWENRE TEERA FTUBEEGA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—%&) (F=4&) (F=&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TERT
Recurring fair value REUMDAEE
measurements
Land and buildings: T RIEF
- in Hong Kong -LREB - - 139,070
- in Mainland China — i 7 R B K e - - 197,183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BMERZRE (&)

(Continued)
(a)  (Continued) @ (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREER(E)

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2017 using
SE£E T A=t -R@EANT

BANAREE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HRZEE®E B AR EAM ESWNE:N
Description i ERMENERE AHERHEA  TaUBEREA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—#%) (FE=#&) (F=ZH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FTAET
Recurring fair value KEERAETE
measurements
Land and buildings: T REF:
- in Hong Kong —REB - - 125,870
- in Mainland China — {2 7 B K B - - 192,998

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

There was no transfer among levels 1, 2, and 3
during the year.

AREBRELRSREBLFM
SEARHABEREARBLA
REBH -

RERAF— ZR=ZBzETEH
% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

15. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)
(a)  (Continued)
Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

15. % - BMERKRHE (F)

(@) (&)
MNAEXTTEEBANDAERT
B(E=ZH)

31st December 2018
—E2-N\E+=ZHR=t+-—H
Land and Buildings in

buildings in Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
NREBZ LRTPEXE
Tt REF ZEF HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FTERT
At 1st January 2018 R=—ZT—-N\F—H—H 125,870 192,998 318,868
Depreciation & (4,267) (6,325) (10,592)
Revaluation surplus ERREN 17,467 21,575 39,042
Exchange adjustment fE R B - (11,065) (11,065)
At 31st December 2018 MR- ZT—/\#F
+=A=+—8 139,070 197,183 336,253
Revaluation surplus for FEiREBaRmEMEE
the year included WA/ (FAX)FEF
in the consolidated BRAEE cEHBH

income statement at
the end of the year,
under ‘other operating
income/(expenses),
net’

- 1,738 1,738
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AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BMERZRE (&)

(Continued)
(a)  (Continued) (@ (&)
Fair value measurements using significant FAERTTBEBANA LB
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued) B(E=8)(&)
31st December 2017
—E—t&%+-_A=+—H
Land and Buildings in
buildings in Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
NREEZ MNRFEKAE
T REF ZETF Rk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TET
At 1st January 2017 R-ZE—+F—-HF—H 107,350 147,375 254,725
Depreciation nE (3,520) (5,551) (9,071)
Transfer g s 34,816 34,816
Revaluation surplus EHRH 22,040 2,792 24,832
Exchange adjustment =R = 13,566 13,5666
At 31st December 2017 RZ-ZT—+F
+=-—A=+—H 125,870 192,998 318,868
Revaluation deficit for HiREBEaRMEMEE
the year included WA/ (FAX)FEF
in the consolidated BRAFE 2 EHREX
income statement at
the end of the year,
under ‘other operating
income/(expenses),
net’ = 3,160 3,160
Valuation processes of the Group AEBHEHEERE
The Group's land and buildings were valued at AEBWHN I HREFHBEIEEM
31st December 2018 and 2017 by independent BEME—TE—N\FE_T—tF+
professional qualified valuers who hold a recognised A=+ —HAE hHEMFEE
relevant professional qualification and have recent AR EXER  WHAHED
experience in the locations and segments of the land 4 b R AE T A M B R R I3 A 3T B A
and buildings valued. For all land and buildings, their BopFMAEITHWEETF  HEBEAH

current use equates to the highest and best use. FRAEREESMREFER -
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AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

15. Property,

Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)
The Group’'s finance department considers and
discusses the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes,
including all key inputs to the valuations and property
valuations movements as compared to the prior year.
At 31st December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of
the properties have been determined by Centaline
Surveyors Limited.

Valuation techniques

For land and buildings in Hong Kong, the valuation
was determined using the direct comparison
approach with reference to comparable transactions
available in the relevant market. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted
for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square foot.

For buildings in Mainland China, the valuation was
determined using the depreciated replacement cost
approach with reference to the current cost of
replacing an asset with its modern equivalent asset
less deductions for all physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation
based on significant unobservable inputs. These
inputs include:

Cost of construction

Cost per square metre to completion estimated
by the valuer using direct market comparables and
taking into account the useful life and size of the
property and its facilities as at 31st December 2018
and 2017.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straight-
line method over the useful life, including physical
deterioration and functional and economic
obsolescence and adjusting by the physical condition
of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

15. % - BMERKRHE (F)

(a)

(%)

AEBWMEERE(H)
AEERBHAMBEREBOEF
VEEMOEEETEERN®
BREBUGMERTNMEETESR
ARMEMER EFELRTHE
- R_ZT-N\FR_ZF—+tF+
“A=t—H WEVENIAE
EHRFRAEMITERIAERE -

CREER]
NREAN L MBTONHEESE
HEMSALRZXZHNAERLR
EETE MO BRYENEE
ERTEHEBIMYERERE)E
REHBE - HUHM[BEENREK
MARTFEHRMER -

R PEAENETHEE 2Z
MRS EBEEIRAEMBENAR
ABERLRSEABTANRE RE
TEEEENRERAFNRATERE
ERNE  MEATABREGAE
Eo LB AR :

= o

HEMR-_ZE-—N\ER_FT—+tF
T+ A=+ BEREEMBLR
TR A G AW ¥ R H AR e ) 5 B
;%&E%ﬁ%ﬁ%iiﬁx%ﬁ
o

HITE
B PR B AR 2 5 1 T 4 PR 4E B
R SRR B - @ IEE R B
MBI T 4008 | 018 FE - 3 1218
S E BRI (E B -

£ P 5 B B 10 3 4 52 B o



15. Property,

(Continued)
(@)  (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Plant and Equipment

as at 31st December 2018

Description

i

Valuation technique

fEE B
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AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018

s e
==

(@) (#&)

F-NEFSt_A=1—HIFE

15. 1% - BMERKRHE (F)

R-ZB-NF+-A=+—-HAKARE
RFAAEEBANIAETENE

B(E=4)

Unobservable inputs

TAEEHA

Relationship of unobservable inputs
to fair value

TUABEEBAHDAENBE

Buildings in Heyuan,
Mainland China
iz B A B K B AR 9 48

Buildings in Shenzhen,
Mainland China
i A R B KB R YI B0 18 F

Land and buildings in
Hong Kong
UREBEBOLHRET

Depreciated
replacement cost
approach

HEEBERNE

Depreciated
replacement cost
approach

HEEERANE

Direct comparison
approach

BEREBA

Cost of construction of RMB1,650
(2017: RMB1,600) per square metre

BREAREFHAKARKLE507T
(ZT—t%: AR¥1,6007T)

Estimated depreciation over the
remaining useful life of 41 years
(2017: 42 years)

BRAGRERNN+—FHATE
(ZF—tF:m+=%)

Cost of construction of RMB3,450
(2017: RMB3,000) per square metre

BREAREFEHAKARES4507T
(ZZ2—+%: AR#%3,0007T)

Estimated depreciation over the
remaining useful life of 25 years

(2017: 26 years) and 38 years (2017:

39 years) respectively
DRRAERFHO -+ REF

(Z2—tF T A"F)R=TNF

(ZE—+F: =T NE)RBEFHE

Sales prices, HK$18,677 (2017:
HK$16,904) per square foot of
a comparable property in close
proximity

MEBENEHERSHZ
RESFHRI8,677HF T
(Z2—+%:16,904% L)

The higher the estimated cost per
square metre to completion, the
higher the fair value.

BEPRFRERRAES  AAEES -

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

et EES  AAEBE -

The higher the estimated cost per
square metre to completion, the
higher the fair value.

BYARERRARS  RABHES -

The higher the estimated depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

e FELS  AAEBE -

The higher the sales price per square
foot of a comparable property in close
proximity, the higher the fair value.

BEARZAHMEENEHERGIZR
BHm AAEES -
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A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_E—)\F+_A=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BMERRZRE (&)

(Continued)

(b)  The net book value of these land and buildings would b) WZE+HRBREFEHIRFESKARZ
have been HK$99,830,000 (2017: HK$107,474,000) EEDKNRERZRBETES R - A
had they been stated at cost less accumulated % % Bk | )% B B 599,830,000/ 7T
depreciation on the historical cost basis. —F— £ :107,474,000% 7T) °

(c) At 31st December 2018, the net book value of land ) RZZTE—N\F+=ZA=+—80''EF@\
and buildings pledged as security for the Group's @TE & 139,070,000/ L (=& —
bank borrowings amounted to HK$139,070,000 + £ : 125,870,000 7T) Z :t i &
(2017: HK$125,870,000). BT EBEAAEERTERZE

I o

(d) Included in total depreciation expenses is an amount (d #@% & X EEH9,204,000% T (=
of HK$9,204,000 (2017: HK$8,409,000) which has T —+ 4 :8,409,000/8 7T) 5T A8
been charged in ‘cost of sales’ and HK$6,227,000 € K A 16,227,000/ T(= & —
(2017: HK$5,763,000) in ‘administrative expenses'. + £ : 5,763,000/ JT) 5T A [17 B FH

X

(e)  Construction work in progress as at 31st December () RZZTE—N\F+ZA=+—RHAZEE
2018 mainly comprises new manufacturing plant, ITRTEREHERE  RENME
canteen and dormitories. & o

16. Investment Properties

16. R EY X

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
At fair value BARE
Opening balance at 1st January R—A—BZH&#%RE 52,150 46,990
Revaluation gain credited to the EHBARABEER
consolidated income statement 3,140 5,160
Closing balance at 31st December Rt+—A=+—HZ2
H R 62 58 55,290 52,150
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16. Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties are held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties through sale. The Group has
measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties using the
tax rate and the tax bases that are consistent with
the expected manner of recovery of these investment
properties.

(@) Investment properties were revalued on the basis of
open market valued by direct comparison approach
by Centaline Surveyors Limited, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December
2018 and 2017. The revaluation gains or losses are
included in ‘other operating income/(expenses), net’
in the consolidated income statement. The following
table analyses the investment properties carried at
fair value, by valuation techniques.

Fair value hierarchy

16.

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

BEWHE(E)
BEASBIEEME Z2EN  5ELH
EMHBERBAILDILEWERNREEA
HoAEBEFERAEZSREYEREY
WE A —B2HERRE =268
DEREMECERZESR 2ELH
7H o
(a WMZE—NFR_ZT—tF+=-A=
+—HB BREWEBRBYIEGFHE

iR RBEEITAERARIZARD
B EEGERERLEEEM - &
EEBEDFAGEERR TIEME
BUWA (R FREIA - TRIIE
MAGBERMOTIE A REARD
REWME -

AREEBR

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2018 using
—E-NFt+=ZA=+—H
FERAUTHANAAERNE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEEEE ERANHEM BEXMH
Description g EERTISNRE TEEGA FTIBERA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B —#&) (BF=H) (F=#&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT
Recurring fair value "EMEAALENS
measurements
Investment properties BEME - - 55,290
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AP mAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

16. Investment Properties (Continued) 16.

(@)  (Continued)

REY=E(E)

m><%

Fair value hierarchy

NRERBR

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2017 using

—E—+F+ZA=+—H
ERARTHANRABEGE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
BRI & E & BAHHEAM ESWNE:N
Description i ERTIS M IRE EREA AUBEREHA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—%&) (B (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FTAET
Recurring fair value REMDAEE
measurements

Investment properties KEYE = = 52,150

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfers.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

Valuation processes of the Group
See note 15(a) for valuation processes of the Group.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties was
determined using the direct comparison approach
with reference to comparable transactions available
in the relevant market. Sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square foot.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

AEB I RREREHEY 254
NIRBFEFHHEEREASEBELA
AEEH -

=HRzEHEE

$§lmﬁﬁm
uﬁ 2 Bﬁ Bﬁ uE15
4|3,T/'\ ®

R E i

REWMENGHESZHBTSAL
BXZMNBERLBEEE - £H8
ML B ENEBEHR IR
(PlanmEEBE)NERELFE -
HHEENREABARBEYS
REEE -

AR EM{ERRE

FAGERMLEE -



Annual Report 2018 £ i 139

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
EF-\FFAZ—AULFE

16. Investment Properties (Continued) 16. REWE(E)
(a)  (Continued) (@ (&)
Information about fair value measurements R-ZE-NF+ZA=+—HEARE
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) RATHEERGAHB(E=ZR) 22
as at 31st December 2018 REFEZEHR
Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs to fair value
#F15 i /B 5 95 FTHBEZBAYE FTHERBABBRAAEZERE
Land and buildings in Direct comparison (1) Sales prices, HK$5,882 The higher the sales prices per square
Hong Kong approach (2017: HK$5,676) per square foot foot of a comparable property in close
NREBZLHREF HELEE of a comparable property in close proximity, the higher the fair value
proximity BERRGEHEENEHERIZAE
MHBENEHERIZRE e AAEHS
§ ¥} R5,882%8 T

2+ F:567687T)

(2) Sales prices, HK$19,808

(2017: HK$18,110) per square foot
of a comparable property in close

proximity

EREENEHRERH AR
B FHR19,808% T
(Z2—t%:181108 )

At 31st December 2018, the carrying amount
of investment properties pledged as security
for the Group’'s bank borrowings amounted to
HK$31,500,000 (2017: HK$52,150,000).

(b)

R_FE—N\F+=-—A=+—8 ' 4&&
B iR 77 & FX LA BR M % (831,500,000
BT (ZZE—+4 : 52,150,000 7T)
M EWEEBET -
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A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

17.

18.

Inventories 17. &
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Raw materials R %} 20,138 20,823
Work in progress R 23,251 27,017
Finished goods 2K 54,152 59,799
97,541 107,639
Provision for slow-moving EREERE
inventories (6,607) (6,309)
90,934 101,330
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and FEXKATERSERIL I AHEEK
included in "cost of sales” amounted to HK$206,704,000 KIH) % 58 £ 51206,704,0008 T (ZZ —
(2017: HK$189,857,000). Provision for slow-moving + 4 : 189,857,000/ 7T ) 7 s 17 & #
inventories of HK$298,000 (2017: HK$855,000) was 298,000/ T (ZZ — -+ 4 : 855,000/8 JT)
included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated income BrfAGEREaRIEERE] -
statement
Trade and Bill Receivables 18. EWWEBEZRAREE
At 31st December 2018, the ageing analysis of trade and RZE-—NF+_A=+—H EKES
bill receivables based on invoice date is as follows: RREEEREBEEZAH 2ERSTN
T:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THE T
Up to 3 months BNHR = = {& A 76,900 75,047
4—6 months MY 1E A = /<& A 12,584 5,223
Over 6 months iR 18 7~ & A 846 628
Provision for returns and loss SRR EREEEME
allowance - (216)

90,330 80,682




18.

19.

Annual Report 2018 £ i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

Trade and Bill Receivables (Continued) 18. EUWX & 5 iR ZE(E)
The Group's trade and bill receivables are mainly AE B pE U E \%EE &—J—TFEELA/%E
denominated in HK$ and USD. The carrying value of trade LETLHEE EREBEFEZEER R
and bill receivables approximate their fair values due to HEREAALERAORERESH -
their short term maturities.
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to AEEFAEBYEREERFIRE L
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime FAT=RHEEERE  MAMAEREKE
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. There SERE AR E LR TE B RE -
were no historical credit losses incurred over existing RERFPYEELERLEERBE Mo
customers and the overall default rate of corporate ERNERBEORBEERFETE REKFE -
remained relatively stable and low. Therefore, as at 31st Bt - RZZFE—N\F+ZA=F+—H" &K
December 2018, the directors of the Group were of SEEER AL ANREERE -
the opinion that no provision for loss allowance were
necessary.
Cash and Cash Equivalents 19. R RBESEEY
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Cash at banks and in hand RITMERFR® 49,996 68,621

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period of the Group is cash at banks amounting
to HK$49,789,000 (2017: HK$68,341,000).

RMEHRAEBRZ A EERBR2ZETIR
& 2 & HE LD B A49,789,0005 T (=
T — £ : 68,341,000/ 1) °

2018 2017
—E-N\#F = —+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET T T

Denominated in: EER
HK$ BT 14,154 10,408
RMB AR 13,769 13,159
UsbD ETT 21,778 44,783
Other currencies Hfh 5 295 271
49,996 68,621

Included in the balance are bank balances and cash
deposited in Mainland China and Vietnam of approximately
HK$10,502,000 and HK$143,000 (2017: HK$11,023,000
and HK$90,000), respectively, which are mainly
denominated in RMB and VND and are subject to the
exchange control restrictions imposed by the governments
in Mainland China and Vietnam.

FREEBIEERERRERBEZRITERK
I8 4 9 Bl 4 /410,502,000 7T 5 143,000
B or(Z T — + F:11,023,0008 7T &
90,0008 L) EFEUARER HEE
AEBENTSERTEERBERAE
e 2 INEE B Hl 2R A5 o

141
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A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

20. Share Capital

20. A

No. of shares HK$'000
A= T T
Authorised VE T BR AR
At 1st January 2017 and RZE—+tF—F—HBK
31st December 2017 and +ZA=+—H8K
2018, ordinary shares of —2—NF+=ZA=+—8 "
HK$0.10 each BREME010E T 2 E AR 500,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid BREITERHBRRKA
At 1st January 2017 and RZE—+tF—HA—BX
31st December 2017 and +TZA=+T—HK
2018, ordinary shares of —2-N\F+=-A=+—80"
HK$0.10 each BREBEIOB T ZEAR 198,958,000 19,896
21. Reserves 21. &
Land and
Exchange buildings Capital
Share fluctuation revaluation redemption Total other Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
Ex%2® 1hRkEs EXEE BEM
ROEE "B EfififE 1 B REBF okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TAT TR FTET TAT TR THT
At 1st January 2018 R-Z—NE—F—H 15,885 14,779 213,785 104 244,553 297,068 542,521
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - - (1,760) (1,760)
Revaluation surplus on land and tHREFZ
buildings BERH - - 37,304 - 37,304 - 37304
Deferred tax charged to revaluation NhERFEEZ
reserve EREHIE - - (6,515) - (6,515) - (6,515)
Currency translation difference EMBEER - (13,361) - - (13,361) - (13,361)
At 31st December 2018 RZZ—)\F
+-A=+—H 15,885 1,418 244,574 104 261,981 296,208 558,189
At 1st January 2017 R=ZF—+F—f—H 15,885 (4,579) 190,499 104 201,909 282,665 484,574
Profit for the year AEERA = = = = = 19,283 19,283
Revaluation surplus on land and THREFZ
buildings BHRH - = 27,992 - 27,992 - 27992
Deferred tax charged to revaluation NEERREZ
reserve BRI = = (4,706) = (4,706) = (4,706)
Currency translation difference EWmEER = 19,358 = = 19,358 - 19,358
Dividend paid IR E - - - - - (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2017 RZE—+ &
+=ZA=+-8H 15,885 14,779 213,785 104 244,553 297,968 542,521
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BE-_F—\F+-A=+—HIFE

22. Trade and Bill Payables and Other 22. ENESZREREZE R Ht
Payables and Accruals EARERETEX
2018 2017
S L
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Trade and bill payables (note (a)) ERNEBESZRBRERE
(B 3E(a)) 17,387 22,817
Other payables and accruals HEMENRERETHAX 29,783 29,325
Total (notes (b) and (c)) 4278 (P 7% (b) R (c)) 47,170 52,142

(a) At 31st December 2018, the ageing analysis of trade
and bill payables based on invoice date is as follows:

(a)

RZE-NF+-A=+—H " Ef
FEXAMEBRREBERARN K
ﬁ

=y

BT
2018 2017
—E-NE T+ F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Up to 3 months BNEA = =& A 15,030 21,631
4-6 months MEAZENHEA 2,096 879
Over 6 months i 8 7 {E A 261 307
17,387 22,817
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BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

22. Trade and Bill Payables and Other 22. ENESZREREE R Ht
o =+ a =
Payables and Accruals (Continued) B RIER BB X (&)
(b) Trade and bill payables and other payables and b) ENBIHERZE KR HMENK
accruals are denominated in the following currencies: HEEFRASIATY EEGTE :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA& T
HKS BT 11,271 19,322
RMB AR 22,149 21,261
usD ETT 7,046 11,162
Other currencies H ity &5 ¥ 6,704 397
47170 52,142
(c)  The carrying value of trade and bill payables and () ENESHIERZERXHMERK
other payables and accruals approximate their fair BEREFRTS2EABEHEEAAE
values due to their short term maturities. MAOREREH -
23. Borrowings 23. B
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHETT
Current liabilities REEE
Trust receipt loans BRI E R 24,734 37,621
Bank loans RITE R 36,800 -
Total borrowings 1R 61,534 37,621
Total borrowings included secured liabilities of 1A fE B E A R & 544,734,000 7T
HK$44,734,000 (2017: HK$37,621,000), which are secured (ZZF— -+ :37,621,0008 ) LA AN E E
by certain land and buildings and investment properties METLHEREFRIEEYEERR
of the Group (notes 15 and 16). The borrowings of FE15%16) ° 61,534,000/ JTf& X @A AR
HK$61,534,000 are also supported by guarantees given by AkAETHBARIREER -

the Company and certain subsidiaries.
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23 {:H:TA(IHE)

(a)  The maturity of borrowings in accordance with the (a) AR HR B B R (W | AT iR E R K
repayment schedule (without taking into account the XER) BXROIHBELOT
repayment on-demand clause) is as follows:

Bank loans Trust receipt loans
RITEXR EARVREER

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\F -+t ZEB-NF —E—LtF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FH& T FERT FH& T

Within 1 year 1F RN 24,800 - 24,734 37,621
Between 1 and 2 1829

years 4,800 - - -
Between 2 and 5 2%E54F

years 7,200 = - =

36,800 - 24,734 37,621

(b)  The average effective interest rates per annum as at b) RZE-—NF+ZA=1+—HHTFH
31st December 2018 are as follows: ERFENEDOT:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

Trust receipt loans ElEE R 3.48% 2.62%
Bank loans RITE R 3.05% ~%

(c) Borrowings are mainly denominated in HKS.

(d)  The carrying value of borrowings approximate their

fair values.

©) BEREIBAETHE-

(d) ERHOEmESRHR
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24. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 24. SR EFRERM T
of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation (a) HEELAWNFRESEHERANE

to net cash generated from operations 2 ¥ iR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA& T
Profit before taxation B 5 Al g A 622 25,461
Interest income F B A (62) (63)
Interest expense M ERX 1,523 1,000
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - HEK&
and equipment REEE 31 959
Gain on revaluation of investment KEMFEMEERRSF
properties (3,140) (5,160)
Revaluation (surplus)/deficit of BFEHER)
buildings S (1,738) 3,160
Amortisation of land use rights o Hh {55 R E HE gH 715 709
Depreciation of property, plant and % - BMENZEITE
equipment 15,431 14,172
Provision for/(reversal of provision iR (B EER)
for) returns and loss allowance RENEEEG 100 (91)
Provision for slow-moving ERTERE
inventories 298 855
Operating profit before working BEECEER 2
capital changes =il 13,780 41,002
- Inventories -FE 8,358 (18,516)
— Trade and bill receivables and -ERESERK
other receivables, deposits and B &AM eI
prepayments R BT RFEM
A (14,642) 2,296
- Trade and bill payables and -ENEBESRER
other payables and accruals SR HEMEN
BN ER X (5,462) (679)
Net cash generated from operations 38 & 4+ H))F IR & 2,034 24,103
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24. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 24. ZEHRE R ERK =T (E)
of Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) Analysis of disposal of property, plant (b) HEWE BERREIN
and equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, ERERERERN HEWHE
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment BEREZEMSRETE:
comprise:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net book value AR EOF B 132 1,013
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE¥ - BE&
and equipment REEE (31) (959)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEYE  BEK
plant and equipment BEIECEN 101 54
(c) Analysis of changes in financing during c) FAMEBRE D
the year
Bank loans Trust receipt loans
MITER FERkEER
2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F Z—ZB-NE —T—+#F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET THET FET
At 1st January Rn—HA—H - 11,875 37,621 29,292
Additions of loans ¥ iE & & 40,000 = 103,913 115,158
Repayments of loans {Ei& B X (3,200) (11,875) (116,800) (106,829)

%
i
an
1]
T
m

At 31st December 36,800 = 24,734 37,621
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For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE-—F—\F+-A=Z+—HIFZF

25. Commitments 25. EIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE
At 31st December 2018, the Group had the following RZZE—N\FF+—A=+—080 X%
capital commitments for property, plant and EEUTYE BEREHEZAER
equipment: R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHETT
Contracted but not provided for BET4 18 K& 5,858 636
(b) Commitments under operating leases as (b) UEBALEHERE
lessee
At 31st December 2018, the Group had future RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—8' ' &&%
aggregate minimum lease payments under EETAHELCEHENAE &
noncancellable operating leases as follows: EHEEMKAT :
Land and buildings and
office equipment
THEREFER
WRAERE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F Tt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Not later than one year —F R 235 735
Later than one year and no later —FR%BETZRAF
than five years 50 225

285 960
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25. 7§ (#8)

(c) Commitments under operating lease as (c) UHBAARELHERR
lessor
At 31st December 2018, the Group had future RZZE—N\F+—A=+—080 *&
aggregate minimum rental receivables under EE AAELCEHENAE 2 &
non-cancellable operating leases as follows: EEWHEEREBHOT
Land and buildings
T REF
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHETT
Not later than one year —F A 700 1,365
Later than one year and not later —FRETZRAF
than five years - 700
700 2,065
26. Financial Guarantees and Pledge 26. I ERRIER
At 31st December 2018, the Group had the following RZE—NF+ZA=+—H x&£EZ
banking facilities, of which approximately HK$186,000,000 RI{TEL & © 49186,000,000% L(=Z —
(2017: HK$186,000,000) were secured by legal charges + 4F : 186,000,0007% 7T ) A 78 5 B A BR T
over certain land and buildings and investment properties B4 #£#9170,570,000/8 T (=T — 4 -
of the Group with a total carrying value of approximately 178,020,000/8 70) 2 &/ T L RIEF R %
HK$170,570,000 (2017: HK$178,020,000). BWERMIEZREHEM -
2018 2017
—ZE-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade and loan finance facilities BEoREERE 206,000 226,000
Forward exchange contract line EHIINEGHEE 62,312 62,432
In addition, the Company and certain subsidiaries also BN - AR RRE T H B AR A& B

provided guarantees in favour of the banks to secure these BRITHE  WERBITREER -

banking facilities granted to the Group.
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27. Ultimate Holding Company
The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, as being the ultimate holding company and Mr.
Mon Chung Hung as being the ultimate controlling party.

28. Subsidiaries

27.

28.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st

December 2018.

Place of
incorporation/

Paid up share capital/

=

HX A HQ/L\_
ARREESRAERBRABESAMZ
Spector Holdings Limited Jb & %% 22 f% /A 7]
R EB RS R SRES T -

R

He

Al

B /B 2 A
RZZE-NE+-A=+—8 A2 alH
ETHNEEHBAA :

Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
£ AR 2 BERE/EMEXR TEEH B
2018 2017
—E2E-NF —ZE—+#F
Shares held directly
EREARG
Perennial Holdings Global Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD1 Investment holding 100% 100%
RERRES ETmR1ET REZER
Shares held indirectly
MERARA
Ever Peak Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 Property holding 100% 100%
KHERAR AT BH L@RIAB T AU
Glitter Wire & Cable Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500 Investment holding 100% 100%
REEREEFERAA N i fx5007%8 T REZEKR
Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000
BERERETKRNH
2,000,000 7T
New Technology Cable Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 License holding 100% 100%
MMERERAF BB 38 1%1,0007% 7T HARR
Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
ERFERELERN
10,000,0007% 7T
Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 Trading of electric 100% 100%
BHEL(EE)ERAA BB %A% 2,000,000 7T cables, wires,

wire harness and

accessories
BEEXER B 44

BRREMH
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A Mg mRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_FE—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

28. Subsidiaries (Continued) 28. B AT (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
8 SRS M 2 HMERAZREXR TEEH L
2018 2017
—E2-N\F ZZT—+F
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
MEsERE (&)
Perennial Cable Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary USD1 Investment and property 100% 100%
BEHEHRERAT RBRRES TmRI1ET holding
RERFAEDE
Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing of electric 100% 100%
Limited (wholly owned foreign B K BE HK$65,000,000 cables, wires and
enterprise) (note (a)) A A wire harness
BEEERORINERAA 65,000,000 7T REER BREMAS
(2B A B IMERE) (P X (a) BR
Perennial Plastics (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Trading of plastic resins 100% 100%
EHBR(FE)BRAA &5 L3 A 278 T and compounds
BEEZBAKEER
(a=E7
Perennial Cable (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary USD50,000 Investment holding 100% 100%
EHEZBVIVERAA RBRXES 38 f%50,000% 7T REEK
New Technology Cable Pte. Limited Singapore Ordinary SG$2 License holding 100% 100%
(note (d)) (Ffi & (d)) ERIIE L AR 23 I3 T HAER
Shinka K.K. (note (e)) (Kf &= (e)) Japan Ordinary JPY10,000,000  License holding 100% 100%
BA & 3 10,000,000 8 7T HAMR
Perennial USA Inc. United States of Ordinary USD1 Trading of electric 100% 100%
(note (b)) America TERIET cables, wires,
(HF &% (b)) xH wire harness and
accessories
BEEER H&K #8
R R
Shenzhen Welldone Trading Co., Mainland China Registered capital Trading of electric 100% 100%

Limited (note (a))
RIEREERBESERAA
(Ht 3 (a))

REARE

HK$1,000,000
g EA
1,000,000 7T

cables, wires,

wire harness and

accessories
BEXER B 44

BRR R
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A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
ECE-NFES A= —HIFE

28. Subsidiaries (Continued) 28.
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital
8 At R BMEREEMER

By B8 2~ &) (48

Principal activities

TEER

Shares held indirectly (Continued)

BMESEERG (8)
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics and Metal Mainland China Registered capital
Co., Limited (note (a)) B K B HK$40,000,000
RYEHZBAEERAA A & A<
(Ht 2% (a)) 40,000,000/ 7T
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics Co., Mainland China Registered capital
Limited (note (a)) B K B HK$10,000,000
RINEREBER AR (M (@) =1 & 410,000,000 7T
Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Metal Mainland China Paid up share capital
Co., Limited (note (c)) LiEpN RMB65,000,000
AREBEZBASERAR BEHAEX
(Bt 5 (c) 65,000,000\ B %
Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Limited  Vietnam Paid up share capital
(note (f)) (B & (f)) 4] VND67,355,400,000

Manufacturing and sale
of electric cables,
wires, wire harness
and accessories

HERHEER §
& HEABERREMH

Manufacturing and sale
of plastic resins and
compounds

BERHELERBAKE
B kL&

Manufacturing and sale
of electric cables,
wires, wire harness
and accessories

HENHEER B -
HEBRREMN

Leasehold land holding
BELM

(2017: VND26,666,400,000)

2 % & 7467,355,400,000
MEB(CZE—t4E:
26,666,400,000# 7 [&)

Interest
¥
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ZT—+F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability
company.

LRMRBRBIGRERRBIEAE -
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28. Subsidiaries (Continued)

Save as noted below,

the above companies operate

principally in Hong Kong instead of their respective places
of incorporation/establishment, except for:

(a)

Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, Shenzhen
Welldone Trading Co., Limited, Shenzhen Perennial
Plastics and Metal Co., Limited and Shenzhen
Perennial Plastics Co., Limited are in Shenzhen, the
People’'s Republic of China.

USA Inc. is

Perennial in the United States of

America.

Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Metal Co., Limited is
in Heyuan, the People’s Republic of China.

New Technology Cable Pte. Limited is in Singapore.

Shinka K.K. is in Japan.

Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Limited is in Vietnam.

AP BmAME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018

BE_F—)N\Ft_A=1—HIFE

28. B~ 7 (4&)

BRATERI LA AR ZEEME TR
BB BT IEEAE B E MK S i B

(a)

BEERCRIDARAA - FINME
REEREZFERRA  FRIIEH

PRBRAESBERIFERYIERER
BERRARMLRFEARLMERY
’_'\T_J_O

Perennial USA Inc.fiz A EE o
TREEHEBASAER QNG LR P
EARKEFMBEARET ©

New Technology Cable Pte. Limited
iz P R N3 o

Shinka K.K. iz A B 7S ©

Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co.,

Limited iz P ET o
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A ISR MR (8)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE_E—)\F+_A=+—HIFE

29. Statement of Financial Position and 29. I B MR A REFHEEH K
Reserve Movement of the Company
Statement of Financial Position B 7% AR R 3R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR Z™E 62,738 62,738
Current assets mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U FfY 8 A ] 5K I8 59,063 58,839
Other receivables, deposits and EmEWER ek
prepayments TEET B 396 393
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEEY 94 270
59,553 59,502
Total assets E E 122,291 122,240
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to shareholders of 7N/ &) f% B JE {5 42 25
the Company
Share capital fi& 2 19,896 19,896
Other reserves H b s 78,537 78,537
Retained earnings REBAF| 23,615 23,517
Total equity wiEn 122,048 121,950
LIABILITIES &
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables and accruals Ef A RIEREAX 243 290
Total liabilities BEE 243 290
Total equity and liabilities wERMEAE 122,291 122,240

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 25th March 2019

and was signed on its behalf

MON Chung Hung
=R
Director

EBEF

ARRZMBRARN_F-—NF=A=

THAKEFERHEIRERRE

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

e A
Director

EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV B|RERNE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2018
BE—FE—N\F+-A=Z+—HIFE

29. Statement of Financial Position and 29. IR EXREEEFHER (&)
Reserve Movement of the Company

(Continued)
(a) Reserve Movement (a) REEF
Contributed Capital
Share surplus redemption Total other Retained
premium (note) reserves reserves earnings Total
BARER -
R 17 % B (&) EEREE SHtRERE KRBERA BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTHT THT THT FTHT THT
At 1st January 2018 R=Z—-N\$—A—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23,517 102,054
Profit for the year A EFE 5 A - - - - 98 98
At 31st December 2018 RZZ—)\F
+=A=+-H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23,615 102,152
At 1st January 2017 R=FE—+t&—A—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,5637 27177 105,714
Profit for the year AEE 5 Al = = = = 320 320
Dividend paid TR A = = = = (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2017 RZZE—t#
+-A=1+—8 15,885 62,548 104 78,5637 23,517 102,054
note: The contributed surplus of the Company arose when MeE: ZARBZHBABBERDE
the Company issued shares in exchange for the TRMDURBEREARRRG
shares of subsidiaries being acquired in connection EEBBMIMBERAR LTAI
with the reorganisation of the Group prior to its BEHAANEE MU E KB AR
listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, ZBRHOMELS - BERARQA
and represents the difference between the nominal BITRM 2 EEHETUENE
value of the Company’'s shares issued and the RAIZEEFEZEZRE - BRI
value of net assets of the subsidiaries acquired. BREE-NAN—FR8EMKE
Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as 1BE]) » MARBKRAH SR TR
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable R-EAEBEZER: BZAAR
to the shareholders. At Group level, the contributed BROEF DB ARBEANE QA
surplus is reclassified into its component reserves ZIiEEEKE D

of the underlying subsidiaries.

30. Approval of the Consolidated 30. &M BEHRER 2L E

Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved by KGEUMBERRER-_E—NF=ZA=-7
the Board of Directors on 25th March 2019. hTRAEEEEHE -



1 56 Perennial International Limited 12 %8 £ @ AR A 7

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
51 75 B 3

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E2-N\F ZF—tF ZE-RF ZF-HFf ZFT@HOF
Operating results REXE(THER)
(HK$'000)
Revenue W z= 355,744 364,401 359,035 401,669 455,403
Operating profit 18 & 8 M AR 1,726 26,461 19,873 16,175 26,945
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(EE)&F (1,760) 19,283 14,622 11,688 18,917
Financial position MERR(FET)
(HK$'000)
Net current assets MEEEFE 133,146 169,387 139,996 153,955 152,541
Shareholders’ funds BREE S 578,085 562,417 504,470 506,384 493,073
Per share data (HK$ cent) &R ZH#E (&)
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(EBR), /AT
- basic and diluted -EAREE (0.9) 9.7 7.3 5.9 9.5
Dividend per share (interim & & A% B (FF H§ &
and final dividend) AERE) - = 2 2 4
Key Statistics FEHE
Inventory turnover (days) FERE(XE) 117 118 112 110 108
Debtors’ turnover (days) e AR B EE (R &) 88 81 85 84 72
Creditors’ turnover (days) FEfT AR B (K &) 38 40 48 43 47
Acid-test ratio (%) R E I E (%) 138.1% 174.6% 160.3% 163.3% 141.4%
Working capital (%) EEE D (%) 220.1% 285.6% 242.2% 252.1% 242.5%
Total liabilities/total capital A& /#EiEH
employed (%) B 7R (%) 26.8% 23.2% 26.3% 26.9% 28.6%
Return on capital employed & F & 7% 5k B &
(operating profit/ (& 5H
shareholders' funds) (%) BREEZ) (%) 0.3% 4.7% 3.9% 3.2% 5.5%
Return on average total 15488 E R X
assets (profit after (BHEERN,/
taxation/average total FHEBEE) (%)
assets) (%) (0.2%) 2.9% 2.3% 0.8% 3.0%
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